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3.6.2017 RECAP Monitoring & Evaluation | Organization & Management of Success in Cooperatives- Organisational &
Saturday of Projects-Concept & Cooperatives-Role of Various Measures to Analyze with Managerial Analysis
Methods Bodies Examples
Dr.N.K.Gandhi Ms.Deepa Srivastava Dr. J.5.Chauhan Shri Ashok B.Pillai
4.6.2017 RECAP Appraisal of Working Appraisal of Working Capital | Departure to Pune for study Return from Pune to
Sunday Capital Proposal-2 Proposal-2 Cases visit from 5.6.2017 to TOPIC Institute on
Cases (Cooperative (Cooperdtive Bank & 8.6.2017 8.6.2017
Bank & Marketing Marketing Federation) . .
Federation) (1400 hrs. onwards)
Shri Ashwani Kumar Shri Ashwani Kumar
9.6.2017 RECAP Presentation by trainees | Presentation by trainees on
Friday on study visit study visit Evaluation & Valediction
All resource persons All resource persons

Note: Yoga & nature cure sessions would be conducted from 07.00 AM-08.30 AM on 31° May to 3 June, 2017 regularly.

Programme Director : Dr.J.S.Chauhan

Tea Break -l

Il
Lunch

1130 to 1145 hrs.
1515to 1530 hrs.
1315 to 1415 hrs.
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~ Genesis and F unctions

Genesis

The Natronal Cooperatrve Ievelopment Corporation (
an Act ofPa 1t in 1963 as a statutory Coro

NCDC) was establrshed by
f'oratlon under the Mrnrstry of Agrlculture

nmes f‘é.r | ;productio‘n V*p"' ﬁ‘ee

rub, ‘er etc., supply of consumer goods and‘ collectron processmg
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NCDC -ITS MISSION, OBJECTIVE, ROLE AND FUNCTIONS

recommended that while the RB|
- task of promotion and financing

India should set up a statutory ¢

= now the NABARD should take upon itself the
of rural credit cooperatives, the Government of
orporation for spearheading the development of

like processing and marketing etc. in the

It was with this background, that the National Cooperative
ation and Warehousing Board was set-

the warehousing activity was separated and NCDC was cre
was further amended in 1974 for the fi

other rural economic activities
Cooperative sector.

Development Corpor up in 1956. In 1963,

ated. The NCDC Act

rst time and in 2002 for the second time to
pave way for broad-basing its constitution, resources

and for diversification in its
nbjectives and activities

Before we discuss the mission with which the ofganization was created, it
may be worth while to understand the meaning of the world mission,

Mission

A mission statement of an organization includes its business aims, who its
customers are, what its products and services are, a
business in terms of cost, quality,
mission states the broad purpose of
which the organization. is heading.
items:-

nd what distinguishes its
reliability and value for money. Thus, the

the organization. It ihdicates the direction in

A complete mission statement includes three

i) The organization’s basic products/services.
i) The functions to be performed.
iii) The markets to be served.

NEDC Mission- is stated to . “To promote, strengthen and develop

Cooperatives for augmenting income of people associated with
agriculture and related areas”.



Corporate Objectives

Because the corporat;a mission denotes the organisation's overall
purpose, it follows that corporate objective will reflect the higher goals and
indicate how they are to be achieved. These are usually measurable short term
and long term objectives which comprise the total range of activities of the
organization.

In other words, corporate objectives are specific targets that support
organisations' survival, and there is generally a set period of time in which to
achieve them. This is reflected in organizations one year, three year and five
year business plans. Corporate objectives are primary objectives and relate to
organisations’ Principal business. None the iess, each division would ultimately
be responsible for devising divisional strategies and plans to implement these
objectives. |

Functions of the Corporation

As per the charter, NCDC is an apex organization set up for planning and
promoting booperative programmes of marketing, processing, storage and export
and import of agricultural produce and commodities notified under the Act.

NCDC Act, 1962 was further amended in 1974. This resulted in broad-
basing of its constitution, resources and diversification of its objectives and
activities. As a consequence, additional activities relating to food stuff, fishery,
poultry, sericulture, dairy, handloom and minor forest produce were brought with
in its ambit.

It was again in 2002, NCDC Act was amended widening its scope to
cover, livestock, cottage and village industries, handicrafts, rural crafts, labour
cooperatives and certain notified services including water conservation,
works/services, irrigation, micro-irrigation, animal  care/health, disease
prevention, agricultural insurance, agricultural credit, rural sanitation, drainage

and sewerages systems.
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(i)

(i1

(i)

To ensure the fulfilment of these functions, the Corporation is s

pecifically
empowered to:

a) Advance loans or grant subsidies to State Governments for
fi

Inancing  cooperative societies and employing personnel to
implement the cooperative developmeht programmes.

b) Provide funds to the State Governments for financing cooperative
societies for the purchase of agricultural produce, foodstuffs and
notified commodities on behalf of the Central Government.

¢) Plan and promote programmes through the Cooperative societies
for supplying seeds, manures, fertilizers, agricultural implements
and other articles.

d) Equip the cooperatives with facilities to promote income generating

streams of activities such as poultry, dairy, fishery, handlooms,

besides taking Up programmes for scheduled castes/tribes for the
benefit of the rural poor.

e) Provide loans and grants directly to the National Level and other
Cooperative societies on the guarantee of the State Government
and in the Union Territories on the guarantee of the Centra|
Government.

f) Provide loans and grants directly to Cooperative societies subject to
their meeting certain conditions.

g) Participate .inv the share capital of National Level Cooperative
Societies with objectives extending beyond one State.

The Cofporation shall show exercises its functions under this sector have
rot to interfere with the activities of the Khadi and Village Industries
Commission established under the Khadi
Commission Act, 1956.

and Village Industries

NCDC works as a Development :Bank'for Cooperative Sector. |t assists

Cooperatives in creating infrastructure to provide farmers wits agro inputs

and consumer articles marketing services and storage an

d processing
facilities.

NCDC also helps cooperatives in upgrading skills and

knowledge of personnel working in cooperative sector (P&D Scheme and

Training Programmes). In addition, NCDC has established its National

g,



Centre for Cooperative Trainers' Training and Material Production. The

Centre is popularly known by the name TOPIC at Gurgaon. The Centre

~ has also helped State Cooperative Banks in establishing Agricultural

Cooperative Staff Training Institute (ACST!) in project States.

NCDC extends various types of promotional and developmental services
to the cooperatives. It provides consultancy/technical services with the
help of its own managerial expertise in various disciplines, assistance for
establishment of Technical and Promotional Cells to enable apex national
federations to provide technical and promotional support to their affiliated

. societies, take up training programmes of cooperative functionaries,

crganize study visits of managing committee members and other
functionaries to successful cooperative ventures, arrange management
studies and undertake well organized publicity campaigns. NCDC
participates in various committees/working groups constituted by the
Government of India and also in the Boards of various public sector and
cooperative organizations so as to promote the interests of the
cooperatives and help in the successful implementation of the cooperative
marketing, storage, processing and .supplies programmes. NCDC also
provides cooperative Excellence Award for outstanding performances by
cooperative societies.

Current Strateqy

The financing and promotional role that the NCDC has adopted so far can

be summarized as follows:

a) The NCDC lends to the State Governments, to cooperatives through State

Governments and / or directly to cooperative societies meeting certain
conditions.

b) For financing to cooperative societies through the State Governments, the

Registrar of Cooperative Societies (RCS) plays a major role in the

identification and formulation of projects.
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NATIONAL COOPERATIVE DEVELOPMENT CORPORA TION
ACT, 1962 (No.26 of 1962)

AN OVERVIEW

Introduction

NCDC was esta_bliéhéd in March, 1963 under the Act of parliament as a successor

: Organi;a{ion to National Cooperative Development and Warehousing Board set up in
1956, in pursuance of the recomrhendations of the All India Rural Credit Survey
Committee ( 1954). NCDC came into being as a nodal organisation for meeting the post-
harvest requirements of farmers through cooperative societies.

A non-equity. based
development financing institution, NCDC was created exclusively

for the cooperative
sector with the objective of planning and promoting programmes for production,

processing, marketing, storage, export and import of agricultural produce, foodstuff and
certain notified commodities on cooperative principles.

With amendment of the NCDC Act in 2002, its scope of activities has been
widened to cover livestock, cottage and village industries, handicrafts, rural crafts and
Certain notified services besides enabling NCDC to lend directly to cooperative societies

provided security to the satisfaction ‘of the Corporation is furnished b

y the borrowing
cooperatives.

The preamble and the main definitions of the NCDC Act are mentioned below:-

;',: L o ; “' _r” ’ T T "_v
Preamble # = :

An Act to provide for the incorporation and regulation of a Corporation for

purpose of planning and promoting “programmes for the production, processing,

marketing, storage, export and import of agricultural produce, foodstuffs, industrial »
goods, livestock, certain other commodities and services on cooperative principles and

for matters connected therewith or inicidental thereto.



Some Main Definitions as contained in the Act -

L "Cooperative Sbbie‘ty" means a society registered or deemed to be regi;tered
under the Cooperative Societies Act, 1912 or under the Multi-State Cooperative Societies
Act, 1934 or under any other law with respect to cooperative societies for the time being
in force in any State, which is engaged in any of the activities specified in Sub-Section

(1) of Section 9 and includes Cooperative Land Development Bank; by whatever name

called;
2. "Agricultural produce" inclﬁdes the following:-
i) edible and non-edible oilseeds;

1i) cattle feed, including oil cakes and other ingredients;
iii)  produce of ﬁoniculmre and animal husbandry;

iv)  produce of forestry;

v)  produce of poultry farming;

vi)  produce of piscicx;lture; and

vi)  produce of other allied activities, whether or not undertaken jointly with

agriculture.
3. "foodstuffs", include:
1) coconuts and arecanuts;

i) eggs and egg products;, -

i) fish, whether fresh, frozen dried or preserved;
v)  fruits, whether fresh, dried or dehydrated,;

v)  honey; '

vi) meat, whether fresh, frozen, dried or preserved;

vii)  milk and milk products; and vegetables.



—

5. "livestock includes a]] ammals to be rajsed for milk meat, fleece, skip wool and
other by-products;
6. "Notifi

ed Commodity" means any commodit
and foodstuffs), which the Central Gg

of entry
33 in List I in the Seventh Schedule to the Constitution '
7. "notified services means any service which the Central Governmen; may, by
notification in the official Gazette, declarg to be notified services for the Purposes of thjs
Act;
8.()  Subject to the provisions of this Act, the "functions of the Corporation” shall be to
plan, promote and finance Programmes, through Cooperative Societies, for:-
(@) the production processing marketing storage, export and import of agricultira|
produce, foodstuffs, poultry feed and notified commodities;
(®)  the collection processing marketing, storage and €Xport of minor forest produce
and
(c)

development of notified services



(a)

(b)

(c)

()

e)

(1)

In particular and without prejudice to the generality of the foregomg provision,

the Corporatlon may:-

advance loans or grant subsidies to State Governments for financing cooperative
societies and for employment of staff for implementing programmes of
cooperative development; '

provide funds to State Governments for financing cooperative societies for the
purchase of agricultural produce, foodstuffs, livestock, poultry feed, industrial
goods, notified commodities and notified services on behalf ‘of the Central
Government; | -

plan and promote programmes through cooperative societies for the supply of
seeds, manures, fertilizers, agricultural implements and other articles for the
development of agricultural produce.

provide ioans and grants dxrectly to the national level cooperative socie:ies and
other cooperative societies having objeds extended beyond one State;

provide loans to cooperative societies on the guarantee of State Governments or in

the case of cooperative societies in the Union Temtones on the guarantee of

Central Government;

“Provided that no such guarantee shall be required in cases in which security to
the satisfaction of the Corporation is ﬁjrmshed by the borrowing cooperative
society".

participate in the share caoital of the national level cooperative societies and other

cooperative societies having objects extending beyond one State,

The Corporatlon shall so exercise its functions under this section .as not to

. mterfere with the activities of the Khadi and Village Industries Commission

established under the Khadi and Village Industries Commission Act, 1956.
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“Notiﬁed Services”

following services/activities
the said Act:-

L.

II.

1.

V.

The Central Government through various gazette notifications have declared the
of cooperatives to be “notified services” for the purpose of

Vide notification dated 13" January, 2003

@) Water conservation works/services, irrigation, micro-irrigation in rural

areas undertaken by cooperatives.

(i)  Animal care/health, disease prevention through the cooperatives.
(iif)  Agricultural insurance and agricultural credit through the cooperatives.
(iv)  Rural sanitation/drainage/sewage systems through the cooperatives.

Vide notification dated 21% June, 2005

(v}  Labour cooperatives

Viiz notification dated 18™ May, 2010

ivi)  Tourism _

{vii) Hospitality and Transport
{viii) Electricity and Power
(ix)  Rural Housing

Vige notification dated 19" August. 2010

{x)  Hospital
(xi)  Healthcare; and
(xit)  Education Cooperatives
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GOVERNMENT POLICIES AND SUPPORT TO COOPERATIVES

Cooperation in an informal way existed in India since ages. It was formally
introduced in 1904 mainly to deal with the problem of rural indebtedness and exploitation
by middlemen. The enactment of Cooperative Credit Societies Act 1904 paved the way
for organization of Cooperative Credit Societies. This Act which laid emphasis on thrift
and self-reliance provided the foundation of cooperative development in India. Under
the Act, Government exempted the cooperatives from fees payable under stamps,
registration and income tax, to encourage the formation of cooperatives. The
organization and control, supervision, inspection and liquidation and rule-making powers
were under the purview of the Government Counsel of the respective province. This
Government Counsel was given the title of Registrar in 1846. Later, the Cooperative
Societies Act, 1912 was passed to remove existing deficiencies of the 1904 Act based
on the English Industrial Act, 1852. The objective was to “promote economic interest of
the members in accordance with cooperative principles ot also permitted non-credit
activities. Initially Government provided the societies with mterest-free finance for the
first three years and thereafter at the rate of 4%, repayable in 10 annual instalments.

In 1918, the Centre transferred the subject of Cooperation to the States (then
Provinces). State Cooperative Acts were constituted based on the Act of 1912. In 1942,
the Central Government enacted the Multi-Unit Cooperative Societies Act, 1942 with an

object to cover societies whose operations are extended to more than one State.

After independence various steps were taken to strengthen the movement. The
advent of Planning in the early 50's with its moorings in democracy and socnallsm and
the emphasis on “growth with social justice” added a new significance and positive role

to cooperatives in India.  Cooperation, in the Indian Five Year Plans has been treated
as a distinct sector. '

The first plan (1951-56) gave a concrete expression to the  trends which were
gradually developing, but did not spell out the reciprocal obligation of the state towards

~ developme;t of cooperatives. This was done in the second plan (1956-61), which had

.. P S S



the benefit of the findings and recommendations of the All In

dia Rural Credit Survey
Committee Report (1954).

The second plan clearly committed the state’s role in building
cooperative sector. Cooperative sector and cooperation was assigned an important role
as an effective instrument of fuffilling its objectives. The policy and programmes as laid
down under the second plan, continued during the third plan (1961-66) also. This plan

provided for the development of cooperatives in many branches of economic life and

ectors. The fourth plan
it will be a part of the policy to ensure that the opportunities
before cooperatives are as large and varied as they can utilize effectively”.

supported diversification of Cooperative activity in various s
(1969-74) emphasized that *

It envisa'ged
mers and the
SO recognized
conditions of
ortant link of

greater use of cooperatives for the development of small and marginal far
weaker sections of the community. The fifth five year plan (1974-79) al
cooperatives as an important institutional frame work to ameliorate the
weaker sections, particularly in providing inputs and working as an imp

national public distribution system. The plan recognized the importance of

cooperatives
and stated, *

there is no other instrument as potentially powerful and fuil of s

ocial purpose
as the cooperative movement”,

The sixth five year plan (1980-85) envisaged that
cooperatives should be strengthened for development of weaker sections, besides
assisting the government in creating a strong and comprehensfve public distribution
system oriented to the requirements of the weaker sections of the community.

In the back-drop of the objectives to achieve increased agricultural production,

diversification of activities, raising productivity levels, remove regional imbalances,.'pay

generation, the strétegy of

precisely, in the subsequent

Special attention to weaker sections and employment

Cooperative development was included, though not very
plans.

Government's assistance to the cooperatives could broadly classify into four
categories, which are briefly described ag follows:- '

(i) Policy Support

The Government's policy towards cooperatives ir.

earlier years was being
~ reflected in the Plan documents.

One of the Directive Principle of the



[—

(—

—

-—— ——

r 1

-

industries on individual or cooperative basis in rural areas”. The Industrial Policy
Resolution (1956) of the Government of India stressed that “the principle of

Cooperation should be applied wherever possible in steadily increasing

proportion and the activities of the private sector developed along cooperative
lines”. Thus in the matter of licensing of new capacity of sugar factories and oil
mills, preference was being given to cooperatives. Similarly, in the matter of
distribution of fertilizers, the allocations for imported fertilizers was made on a

preferential basis to cooperatives: in the allotment of fair price shops preference

was given to Cooperatives. This indirect'policy support of the' Government

facilitated expansion and diversification of the cooperative sector. The internal

and structural weaknesses clubbed with  regional imbalances, however,
necessitated the need for a clear cut National Policy on cooperatives. Thus, a
comprehensive National Policy on Cooperatives was announced by the
Government of India in April, 2002.

Its main objectives included to provide cooperatives necessary support,
encouragement and assistance so as to ensure that they work as autonomous,
self reliant and democratically managed institutions accountable to their
members and make a significant contribution to the national economy. The
policy aims at ensuring the functions of cooperatives based on the Manchester

Declaration of international Cooperative Alliance 1995 (voluntafy and open

members’ economic participation,
autonomy and independence, education, training and information, cooperation
among cooperatives and concern for community).

membership, democratic member control,

The salient features of the policy are:

While upholding the values and priniciples of Cooperation, the National Policy
recognizes the Cooperatives as autonomous association of persons, united
voluntarily to meet their common economic, 'social and cultural needs and
aspirations thfough a jointly owned and democratically controlled enterprise:

* Recognizes Cooperatives as distinct economic sector

and integral

component of the socio-economic system nf the country and an zffective and -

potential instrument of socio-economic development.



(ii)

* Accepts the need to phase out its share holdings/equity participation in the
Ccooperatives.  The cooperative shall be enabled to set up holding
companies/subsidiaries, enter into strategic partnership, venture into futuristic
areas like insurance, food processing and information technology etc., and
shall be independent to take the financial decisions in the interest of the
members and the furtherance of their stand.

* Recognizes the role of the Government in ensuring that the benefit of
liberalization and globalization in the emerging special provision in the
Cooperative Societies Act with regard to banking, housing, real estate
development, processing, manufacturers Cooperatives, infrastructure
development etc.

* Undertakes to devise and execute suitable programmes and schemes to
build and develop cooperative mstltutlons in the cooperatlvely under

developed states/regions with particular reference to the North Eastern State
including Sikkim:

* Recognizes the support of Cooperative Movement to develop human

resources, Cooperative education and training, appropriate technologies and
infrastructural facilities so as to promote professuonal management in
Cooperatives. _

* Undertakes to initiate structural reforms in order to improve the functioning of
the Cooperatives at various levels to ensure greater efficiency and viability.

Financial support

Largé public funds are committed to supporting the cooperative mdvement in its
various activities, particularly in the rural sector. The Government's assistance to
cooperatives is given in shape of share capital contribution, loans and also grants
both towards capital as well as revenue expenditure. The policy of state
partnership in cooperatives and state participation in their management arose out
of the recommended time of the Rural Credit Survey Committee Report in 1954.
That Committee recommended what is known as the Integrated Scheme of Rural
Credit, ‘the main components of which are: Firstly, the State should participate in
the share capital of various types of cooperatives at differé'ﬁi levels to provide
momentum and opportunity to cooperatives. Secondly, credlt alone is not an

‘open sesame” but an instrument of development which should be an integral

4
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(iii)

part of an overall programme of marketing, processing and other allied economic
activities. Thirdly, the operational efficiency of cooperative should be improved
by appointing adequately trained and efficient personnel responsive to the needs
of the rural people. For implementing the Integrated System of Rural Credit
including processing, marketing and storage, the committee suggested divisions
of responsibility at the All India level between the Reserve Bank on the one hand
for cooperative credit programmes and the Government of India, on the other for
marketing, processing, storage and other economic activities. The committee
also recommended the establishment of certain Funds at the national level by the
Reserve Bank of India for agricultural credit and by the National Cooperative
Development Corporation for input distribution processing, storage and

marketing of agricultural produce.

The Government of India broadly accepted the recommendations of the
Rural Credit Survey Committee and created certain funds like the National
Agricultural Credit (Long term Operations) Fund and the National Agricultural
Credit (Stabilization) Fund. The Government of India also established the
National Cooperative Development Corporation as a statutory organization for
promotion of cooperative economic activities in rural areas for input distribution,
processing and marketing of a‘gricultural produce. The National Bank for
Agriculture and Rural Development established in 1982 took over the functions of
the RB! and the Agriculture Refinance Development Corporation in respect of
agricultural credit. National Dairy Development Board was set up under an Act
of Parliament with the prime objective of promoting, developing and financing

dairy and milk production activities particularly in the cooperative sector.
Legislative and Administrative Support

Under the Indian Constitution, “Cooperative Societies” is a subject allotted to the
federating States. Every State has enacted cooperative Ieéislation to govern the
incorporation, regulation and winding up of cooperative societies in their States.
These Acts confer certain privileges on and concessions to, cooperative
socicties. -In recent years,-these Acts have been amended to provide for
promotion of the interests of weaker sections and also to stem the possible

growth of vested interests in cooperatives.

5



While the sector has grown in volume, most cooperative societies lack
autonomy due to direct intrusion of the state in the governance and management
of cooperative societies. The reason is that the cooperative movement in India
was initiated by the government with ideology of state partnership in terms of

equity and also partnership in terms of governance and management.

Since 1990, the need for cooperative reforms was articulated by many
committees. In 1991, the Brahm Prakash Committee proposed a Model
Cooperative Law, in order to make cooperative self reliant, autonomous, and
democratic. Progress in implementing the suggestions is tardy because of the
states’ unwillingness to share in costs and their reluctance to dilute their powers.

Only nine states had enacted the Mutually Aided Cooperative Societies Act.

The Common Minimum Programme of the UPA government promised to
enact a constitutional amendment to ensure the “democratic, autonomous and

professional functioning of the cooperatives.”

The Constitution (One hundred and Sixth) Amendment Bill, 2006
proposes to insert a new part IX B in the Constitution (adding articles 243ZH
though 243 ZT), which outlines certain guidelines for running cooperative

societies. The proposed key changes are:

» Incorporation of Cooperative Societies

The Bill makes provisions for incorporation, regulation and winding up of
cooperative societies and seeks to ensure the autonomous and democratic

functioning of cooperatives.

¢ Composition of the Board

The state legislature shall specify the number of members of the Board of
Directors of a ccoperative society. The number is’limited to 21 except in the
case of a state level cooperative society. The term of the Board is for a
period of five years.
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The election of members to the Board must be conducted before the expiry of

the previous one, or within 60 days after the expiry of the term of the previous
Board.

The expenses of the election would be borne by the cooperative society. The

state legislature would outline the guidelines for conducting such elections.

The state legislature shall make provisions for co-opting any person having
experience in the field of banking, management, finance or specialization in a
field related to a particular cooperative society as members of the Board. A
maximum of two people can be co-opted to the Board. The co-opted
member would not have the right to vote in any election on the cooperative

society or be eligible for election as Chairman, President, Vice-Chairman or
Vice-President.

Supersession of the Board

The Board of a cooperative society can be superseded in case of (a)
persistent default; (b) negligence in the performance of its duties; (c)
commission of any act prejudicial to the interest of the 6ooperaﬁve society or
its members; (d) there is a stalemate in the constitution of function of the

Board; or () the general body has failed to conduct the elections as per the
required procedure.

A Board cannot be superseded or suspended for more than six months. In
case a Board has been superseded, the administrator appointed to manage
the affairs of such a cooperative society shall arrange for conducting
elections within the specified time period.

The Board of a cooperative society which does not have any shareholding or

guarantee or loan or financial assistance from the government cannot be

. supersedec.



(iv)

The Board of a cooperative society which does not have any shareholding or
guarantee or loan or financial assistance from the government cannot be

superseded.

The provisions of the Banking Regulations Act, 1949 will be applicable to
banking cooperative societies.

Offences and Penalties

The state legislature may define the .offences and. penalties related to
cooperative societies. An offence would be committed if (a) a cooperative
society files a false return, (b) willfully disobeys and summon or requisition
issued under the state Act, (c) any employer who, without sufficient caus'e,
does not pay to the cooperative society the amount deducted from an
employee within a period of 14 days, (d) any officer who willfully does not
hand over custody of books, accounts or cash of a cooperative society to an
authorized person, and (e) any person who adopts corrupt practices before,

during or after the election of Board members or office bearers.

There is a Registrar of Cooperative Societies in every State who is to be “the
friend, philosopher and guide” of the cooperative movement. Besides certain
statutory functions, the Registrar and his officers provide. constructive
supervision over and guidance to, cooperative societies. Besides the state
cooperative officers, NABARD and the National cooperative Development
Corporation also provide guidance in the promotion and development of
cooperatives. Financial assistance and grants to cooperative federations/
projects for employing managerial and technical staff is also provided to
strengthen their administrative set up and management.

Cooperative Training

Training of cooperative personnel is an area in which Government provides large
support to the cooperative movement. A national network of training facilities for
cooperative personnel has been evolved and established. There ‘is a National

Council for Cooperative Training (NCCT) which is located in the National

8
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Cooperative Union of India the spokesman of the cooperative movement in the
country. This council is in overall charges of the cooperative training programme
in the country. The institutional arrangements for training consist of Vaikunth
Mehtra National Institute of Cooperative Management, Pune, 19 Regional and
State specific Institutes of Cooperative Management and 91 junior training
institutions. While the first two are directly under the administrative charge of the
NCCT and are funded by the Central Government the last is the responsibility of
the State Cooperative Unions and the State Governments. The NCCT provides

academic support and guidance to the Ccooperative training centres for junior
personnel.



Constitution (97th Amendment) Act, 2011

The Constitution (Ninety Seventh Amendment) Act 2011 relating to the co-operatives is
aimed to encourage economic activities of cooperatives which in turn help progress of
rural India. It is expected to not only ensure autonomous and democratic functioning of
cooperatives, but also the accountability of the management to the members and other
stakeholders.

Reasons of Failure of Cooperative Sector
The cooperative sector has been playing a distinct and significant role in the country’s
process of socio-economic development. The failure of cooperatives in the country is

mainly attributable to:

» Dormant membership -and lack of active participation of members in the
management of cooperatives.

» Mounting overdue in cooperative credit institution

> Lack of mobilisation of internal resources and over-dependence on Government
assistance,

» Lack of professional management.

> Bureaucratic control and interference in the management, political interference
and over-polarisation have proved harmful to their growth.

> Predominance of vested interests resulting in non-percolation of benefits to a
common member, particularly to the class of persons for whom such cooperatives

were basically formed, has also retarded the development of cooperatives.

These are the areas which needed to be attended to by evolving suitable legislative and
policy support with proper political will and financial support.

97th Amendment Act, 2011
As per the amendment the changes done to constitution are:-

» In Part Illof the constitution, after words “or unions” the words “Cooperative
Societies” was added.

> InPart IVa new Article 43B was inserted, which says: The state shall endeavour

to promote voluntary formation, autonomous functioning, democratic control and"

professional management of the co-operative societies”.

'\O
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» After Part IXAof the constitution, a Part IXB was inserted to accommodate state
vs centre roles.

Salient features Part IXB
> It makes Right to form cooperatives is a fundamental right.

» Reservation of one seat for SC/ST and two seats for women on the board of every
co-operative society.

> Cooperatives could set up agency which would oversee election,
» Uniformity in the tenure of Cooperative Board of Directors.

» Provisions for incorporation, regulation and winding up of co-operative societies
based on the principles of democratic process and specifying the maximum
number of directors as twenty-one.

» Providing for a fixed termof five years from the date of election in respect of the
elected members of the board and its office bearers;

» Providing for a maximum time limit of six months during which a board of
directors of co-operative society could be kept under suspension;

» Providing for independent professional audit;
> Providing for right of information to the members of the co-operative societies;

> Empowering the State Governments to obtain periodic reports of activities and
accounts of co-operative societies; which have individuals as members from such
categories;

> Providing for offences relating to co-operative societies and penalties in respect
of such offences.

Implications

The amendment of the Constitution to make it obligatory for the states to ensure
autonomy of cooperatives makes it binding for the state governments to facilitate
voluntary formation, independent decision-making and democratic control and
functioning of the cooperatives. It also ensures holding regular elections under the
supervision of autonomous authorities, five-year term for functionaries and independent
audit. Significantly, it also mandates that in case the board is dissolved, the new one is
constituted within six months. Such a constitutiorial provision vras urgently required as
the woes of the cooperative sector are far too many, long-lasting and deep-rooted to be



addressed under the present lax legal framework However, it fails to establish what
constitutional amendments can’t do in reviving institutions and may be victim of rival
political institutions at the state level as happened in case of 73rd amendments. It is
feared that state-level politicians will do to this amendment on cooperatives what they did
to the one on panchayats. Barring exceptions in a few sectors and states, the cooperative
sector, particularly cooperative credit societies numbering over 120 million, has for a
long time been in a shambles with all kinds of vested interests using them as personal
fiefdoms and ladders to political power and means of personal aggrandisement.

(2
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&, ZUSIBESS DEVELOPMENT ,
All kinds of National, state, district, regional and primary level cooperatives for sectors/activities funded by NCDC

[ Activity : Developed StatesiUTs Under Developed: States/UTs Least Developed States/UTs -

: . NCDC to State Direct NCDC to State Direct NCDG to State Govt. Direct: -

State Govt. 1 Govt. Funding | State Govt. | Govt.to Funding | State Govt. | to Funding -
to : Society Society .

Society E : <
Margin Loan for availing | Loan or | Loan Loan 80% Loan Loan Loan 75% Loan -l:08n 76%.
Money Bank credit. Share | 100% Sub* 20% or Share | 80% Sub* 25% or Share | Sub* 25%
100% Capital Capital Sub* Capital. 75% : : :

80% 20% Sub* 25%

U RN Sub* 20% - . Chel
Working Loan as per L.oan Loan - Loan asper | Loan Loan Loan Loan “Loan
Capital requirement 100% requirement ' '

. 109%_ EEAPTRN SRS e L e sl
Share Investment Loan | Share - Investment Share - Investment Share =
Capital as per ] Capital Loan as per | Capital Loan as per | Capital

requirement requirement requirement
* Subsidy subjéct to availability. from Gowt. of India otherwise equivalentloan from NCDG
Sub = Subsidy SC = Share Capital

B, INFRASTRUCTURE CREATION (PROJECY FACILITIES)

I types of small and medium sized units (other than agro-processing  units)

including small scale industrial units, cottage & village industries, handicrafts, other products of

allied industries, cane and bamboo units, Coir Units, etc, Plant & Machinery/
equipment including integrated projects (other than ICDP), setting up of storage/ godowns (ircluding
renovation/repairs/upgradation),worksheds,purchaseoflooms, cooperatives/ industrialestates,serviceandrepaircentres,
showrooms, showrooms-cum-godowns, market yards, rearing units and grainages, fish tanks/farms,
poultry farms, rearing and breeding of livestock animals, establishment of seed farms etc., cold storages, ice plants,
ireezing plants, boat building including inputs and other infrastructure for fisheries, furniture & fixtures, transport
vehicles including refrigerated and insulated vehicles, installation of/purchase of computers/computerization etc.,
setting-up of agro-service/farmersservicecentres,insectcides/ pesticidesformulationunits, unitstomanufactureinputslike
bio—fertilizers/granularfertilizers,organicmanure,creationof_waterharvesting/irrigationinfrastructuralfacilities,Services
Cooperatives etc. and any other related activities mandated to NCDC, 4
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Developed States/UTs

Under Developed States/UTs

Least Developed States/UTs

NCDC 1o State Govi. | Direct NCDC to State Govt. | Direct NCDC to State Govt. | Direct

State Govt. | to Society# | Funding State Govt. | to Society Funding State Govt. | to Society Funding . - =

Loan 90% Loan 50% Loan 65% Loan 70% Loan 50% Loan 50% Loan 70% Loan 50% - |:Loan 50%

SC/ 40% Sub* 20% SC 20% Sub* 20% Sub* 25% SC20%. Sub* 25%

R R Sub* 20% Sub* 25%

Members® 10% 35% 10% 30% 5% 25% :

contribution :

In respect of “Computerization Programme" 100% loan may be provided-through the State Govt. or dlrcctly in the “Cboperath}ely

Developed States™.

* Subsidy subject to availability from Govt. of India otherwise equivalent loan from NCDC

Sub = Subsidy SC = Share Capital
# Debt equity ratio may vary depending upon viability of the proposed project.

Up to 10,000 TCD

project cost + 40%
loan from SDF to
be sanctioned by
Govt.-of India

project cost + 40%
loan from SDF to.be
sanctioned by Govt.
of India

projéct cost + 40%
loan‘from SDFto.
be sanctioned by
Govt. of India :

”Mddn.IExpn. .
Beyond 10,000
TCD

Loan up to 65% of
project cost

Loan up to 65% of
project cost

Loan upvté,éé"j/q ofi.
project cost:

By-Product units
inciuding
Co-generation

Loan up to 50% of
project cost + 40%
loan.from SDF to
be:sanctioned by

Loan up to 50% of
project cost + 40%
loan from SDF to be
sanctioned by Govt.

be sanctioned by

Loan up fo 59%;m
project cost +46%
loan:from SDF to:

Govt. of India of India Govt. of India
Working capital Loan asper 1100% loan | Loan

requirement
Note: Investment loan to State Govt(s) will be provided only for those
supar  cooperatives  which  have  secured firm  sanction term  loan  from

financial institutions / banks and orders for plant and machinery are finalized.

vegetable

units,

UM TY PR

plantation

-

AGRO-PROCESSING UNITS
crops

processing

units,

dairy

Rural Housing o
Loan 90% Loan Loan 65% Loan 90% Loan 90% | Loan 65% | Loan 95% Loan 95% [Loan 65% |
90% 1 e
| Members 10% 35% 10% 10% 35% 5% 5% 35%.
Contribution -
& PROCESSING
{1} SUGAR MILLS
Activity All States S
Source NCDC to State State Govt. to Direct Funding
Govt society i e
New mill Investment loan up | 30% of project cost
to 30% of project | as Share Capital =
L cost L : i
Modernization Loan up to'50% of | Loan up to 50%.of Loan up to 50% of
project cost + 40% | project cost + 40% project.cost + 40%
loan‘from SDF to | loan from SDF to be | loanfrom SDF to
be sanctioned by | sanctioned by Govt. |.be:sanctioned by .
Govt. of India of India Govt. of-India
Modn./Exph. 'Lovér'fﬁﬁ"t“ow 50% of | Loan upto 50% of | Loan upito. 50%.of .

silk

3 like oil mills, foodgrains units,
units, reeling/twisting,

spinning, wool spinning and jute processing and any other agro-processing activity mandated to NCDC.

fruits &
silk
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Activity Developed States/UTs Under developed States/UTs Least Developed States/UTs o
NCDC to | S/Govtto | Direct NCDCto | S/Govtto [ Direct NCDC to | S/Govtto [ Direct |
S/ Govt. | Society# | Funding | S/Govt. Society Funding | S/Govt. Society Funding -
New Units, | Loan Loan 50% | Loan Loan 70% | Loan 50% | Loan Loan 70% | Loan50% Loan50%
Expansion, | 90% SC  40% | 65% Sub*20% | SC  20% | 50% Sub* 25% | SC  20% Sub*25% |
Moderniza-| . Sub* 20% | Sub* Sub*.25%: ; '
tion 20% :
Diversi-
fication -
Equipment | Loan Loan 90% | Loan Loan 90% | Loan 90% | Loan Loan 90% | Loan90% Loan65%
Finance 90% 65% 65% :

*  Subsidy subject to availability from Govt. of India otherwise equivalent loan from NCDC
¥  Debt-Equity rario may vary depending upon viability of the proposed project.
Sub:: Subsidy SC= Share capital

1. Cooperative Spinining & Ginning Programmes

Least Developed States Under Developed States Other States/UTs;:

From NCDC From S/Govt. From NCDC to | From S/Govt. From NCDC to " {“From SiGovt. to -

to State Govt. | to Society - S/Govt. to Society S/Govt. .Society )

{a) Share Capital Participation in New Mills .

30% of the Share capital . | Sameasfor - | Same as for 20% of the Share capital

‘Project cost or | contribution to - | least developed | least developed | Project cost or contribution to the

70% of share | the extent of states states - 50% of the -

capitat 50% of Project ‘ share capital

contribution by | cost less contribution by

the State Govt. | members the State Govt., - | stipulated equity

whichever is stipulated equity whichever is 1 which:shoiild not -

less, as loan which should less, -as loan be less than 10%
not be less than of the'project:co

7.5% of the
project cost

{b} Modernization/Expansion

Term loan -60% | Term loan- 60% Same as for least | Same as for least | Term loan- 60% | Tefm’ioan= 60% " -
Investment 1 Share capital - developed states developed states Investment loan- Share t’:‘ap’i}él— 30%:
Loan-32.5% | 32.5% 30% Menibers £

Members contribution =10%:
contribulion-7.5% L

{c) Margin Money Assistance for Coop. Spinning Miils & State Coop. Cotton Fedn.

100% loan 100% as Same as for Same as for 100% loan 100%: as Sicapital

S/Capital orlong | least developed | least developed orlongtermioan.
. ltermloan states states ‘ .

{d} Modernisation of existing & establishment of modern Ginning & Pressing Units

Term loan- Term loan -55% | Same as for Same as for Term loan =55%

55% Share capital - least:developed | feast developed | Investment vestinent

Investment 25% states states Loan - 25% . foan- 26% =

loan -25% Subsidy -10% Subsidy -10% Subsidy<—?r10%v

Subsidy- 10% | Members Members Members:. - oo

Members Contribution - contribution- contribution = 10%

contribution - 10% 10% g

10% Sk

{e} Rehabilitation of Sick Codop. Spinning.Mills . »

Term loan- Term loan - Same as for Same as for Same asfor Sameasforleast

70% 70% * . | least developed | least developed | least developed | develoged states.

Subsidy -20% . | Subsidy- 20% states states states en

Members . | Members

contribution- contribution - »

| 10% 10%
Subject to a maximum of 70% of block cost based on the viability of the project
Note : 1 Loan to be provided by NCDC. Subsidy will be provided, if available, from Govt. of India. . 7

* 2. Subsidy for rehabilitation of spinning mills will be on plant and machinery (20% of the cost of plant & machinery) and subject to a ceiling of%
Rs.500 lakh per mill. Shortfall, if any, over and above NCDC’s contribution of ioan and subsidy will be contributed by the society/State Govt. %
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central godown
and shawroom - -
cum-godowns

Activity o Developed States/UTs: Under Developed States/UTs ‘Least Developed States/UTs
NEDC to State Govt. Direct NCDC to State Direct NEDCto State Direct :
State Govt. to Funding State Govt. to Funding State Govt. .. ;| Govt.to .~ }'Funding - -
. Society . Govt. Society ; Society: T e
Margin Loan 100% Loan or SC Loan Loan 80% Loan Loan 80% }: Loan75% ‘Loan
Money/ « margin 100% Sub* 20% or SC . Sub* 20% | Sub* 25% - - ['orSC75% .
Share Capital money for 80% -Sub*25%
availing Bank sub* 20% L
credit.
Purchase of Loan 90% Loan 50% Loan 65% | Loan 70% |.Loan Loan 50% | :oan 75% Loan50% | L.oan50%: -
power looms-or Sub*20% 50% Sub*20% -| ‘Sub*25% 1:8C 1 20% - | Sub25% ]
construction of Share Capital SC 20% Members Sub*26% ‘Members
shed with looms 40% Sub™20% | 30% Members: 25%
and Members 5%
accessories/moder Members 10%
nization / contribution
construction/ 10%
renovation
/opening of
godowns/ ;
showrooms/ =
marketing
complex/ coop.
textile estates.
Share Capital Investment Share capital - Investment Share B Investment Share:
Loan as per loan as-per | Capital loan-as-per.;: i capiat -
_require-ment require-ment réquire-ment ko
Construction of Loan 90% Loan 50% Loan 65% | Loan 70% Loan 50% | Loan50% | Loan 75% Loan 50% - -} Loan 50%:
workshed and Sub*20% SC 20% | Sub*20% | Sub*25% SC..20% Subi25%:
purchase of Share Capital Sub* 20% Sub?25% i &
looms, 40% :
Construction/ I
Opening/ 3
Renovation of Members 10% 35% 10% 30% - 5% |
showroom, Contri-bution

Sub = Subsidy

-

i1 e
L vtirgeedie TS adfer i o

Note : Subsidy subject to availability from Govt. of India, otherwise equivalent loan from NCDC
SC = Share Capital
#  Debt equity ratio may vary depending upon viability of the proposed project
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111. Handloom/Coir/Jute/Sericulture

Subsidy subject to availability from Govt.of India, otherwise equivalent |

Debt equity ratio may vary depending upon viability of the proposed project
SC= Share capital

L= Loan

Sub= Subsidy

oan from NCDC.

Activity Developed States/UTs Under Developed States/UTs Least Developed States/UTs
NCDC to State Direct NCDC to State Direct NCDC to State Direct
State Govt. | Govt. to | Funding | State Govt. | Govt. to Funding State Govt. Govt. to Funding
o | Society Society Society . .

Margin Loan 100% | Loan or Loan - Loan 80% Loan or Loan 80% | Loan 75% Loan toan 75%

Woney margin sC 100% Sub* 20% SC  80% | Sub*20% | Sub* 25% or SG 8ub*.26%:
money for Sub* 20% | - 75%: e
avaiting Sub* 25%

" Bank credit.

Working ‘Loan as per | Loan Loan Loan as per | Loan Loan Loan as per Loan Loan

Capital requirement 100% requirement requirement

Share Investment Share - Investment Share -- Investment Share s

Capital Loan as per | Capital Loan as per | Capital Loanas per Capital: -
requirement requirement requirement

Construc- Loan 90% Loan Loan Loan 70% Loan 50% | Loan 50% | Loan 70% Loan. 50% | Loan 50%:;

tion of 50% 65% Sub* 20% SC 20% | Sub*20% | Sub* 25% SC  20% | Sub* 25%-

workshed Sub* 20% Sub* 25%

and I

purchase of SC- 40%

looms,

Construct- ‘

“ion/Opening

/Renovation

of

Showroom, el

Central Members 10% 35% 10% 30% CE%ui 1 25%

Godown Contribution 3

and

Showroom-

cum-

godowns

= 3EIN



B, INYEGRATED COOPERATIVE DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS (I€DP)

Activity

From NCDC to State Government

From State Government to Society -

Loan

Sub.

Total

Loan

_ Share

Capital

Sub.

Total

Safe deposit
vauits/cash
counters/strong
rooms

100%

100%

50%

50%

- 100

ii)

i)

Margin money
(including share
capital to
DCCB/project
Implementing
agency)

100%

100%

100%

Manpower
Development &
Training

@50%

@50%

100%: -

iv)

Managerial
assistance &
incentive (applicable
to PIA and
Monitoring Cell also)

@50%

@50%

100%

ot

For sub-projects of the project not mentioned above, the pattern apphcable in case of normal: NCDC Scheme
for the given State/activity/category shall be applied with the modification-that 100% of the: asmstance shallbe
provided to the State Govt. for passing on to the coops. The subsidy assistance avallable from any

Deptt./Ministries/agencies shall be dovetailed for passing on to the cooperatlves

100%

@ In the case of states classified as ‘Special Category States’ 100 per cent subsidy shall be given from

No. (i) and (tv) above.
The total subsidy component in a project would not exceed 30% of the total project cost.
Other activities under the project as per the pattern in vogue.

Note: 1.
2.

B
3.

Funding Pattern from State Govt. to the Society is subject to change in consultation with the State Govts.

NCDC to State Government under items
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. PROMOTIONAL & BEVELOPMENTAL PROCRAHMES

Technical and Promotional Cell

«  Allstate level cooperative federations (excluding those connected with the weaker sections programmes)

Under - Developed States

Least — Developed States

Subsidy for employment of professionals to be
provided for a period of 5 years on a tapering
scale.

1) 100% in the first 2 years.
ii) 80% in the 3 & 4" year.

iii) 70% in the 5" year.

i) 100% for the first 5 years.

Subsidy for employment of professionals to be
provided for a period of 7 years on a tapering
scale. '

ii) 80% for the subsequent 2 years.

provided for a period of 7 years on a tapering
scale.

i) 100% for the first 5 years.

i) 80% for the subsequent 2 year.

.
»  All Federations connected with the weaker sections programmes
Under - Developed States Least - Developed States ‘
Subsidy for employment of professionals to be Same as for under-developed states. f , j

Qualifications and scales of pay and other emoluments for the various experts/professionals would be determined
by the concerned federations in consultation with NCDC.

Subsidy. if available from the Central Govt., is proposed to be provided only for Pay, HRA, CCA., DA for 5 to 7

years. The assistance will be sanctioned by the corporation only after careful consider
institutions and assessing the need for appointment of such experts.

ation of the proposal of the

The pattern of assistance for the appointment of Development Officers in the RCS offices would be the same as
applicable to state level federations in the least and under-developed states.

Activity Developed State/UTs Under-Developed States/UTs Least Developed
) States/UTs . ,
NCDCto | State Direct NCDCto | State Direct NCDC State Direct" .-
State Govt. to | Funding State Govt. to Funding to State | Govt to Funding
Govt. Society Govt.* Society Govt.* Society
Promotional & - - - Sub 100% | Sub 100% | Sub 100% | Sub :Sub ‘Sub 100%
Developmerital — ' 100%: - [5100%. . s n i
Preparatiori  of e

Project Reports,
Market Surveys,
Financial
Management .
Studies, Impact
Evaluation
Studies etc. for
establishment
processing units
etc.

Subject to prior approval of the Corporation before undertaking studies and entrusting work to consultants.

BN
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®e QEVELOPHMENT/STRENCTHENING OF AGRICULTURAL MARKETING

IHERASTRUCTURE, GRADING & STANDARDIZATION,

Ministry of Agriculture, Govt. of India

miroduced a scheme for development/strength-
ening of agricultural marketing infrastructure,
grauing and standardization lo encourage rapid
development of infrastructure projects in the ag-
ricultural and allied sectors including dairy, meat,
fisheries and minor forest produce in the States
and UTs where APMC Act has been amended.
nder this scheme, a back ended subsidy of 25%
of the capital cost up to Rs.50 lakh in each pro-

ject is available provided it is a “Direct” service .3

delivery to producers/farming community in post
harvest management/ marketing of their produce.
Subsidy is 33.33% of the capital cost up to Rs.60

lakh in case of North-eastern states, hilly and tribal areas, and in the States of Uuarakhand Ihmachal Pradesh
Jammu & Kashmir and for SC/ST entrepreneurs and their cooperatives. Assistance under the scheme is available

on-capital cost of the project only.

Pattern of funding for projects financed through NCDC

For cooperatives in all States other than in North-gastern S.tates, Uttarakhand, Himachal Pradesh, Jammu & Kash-

mir, hilly and tribal areas & SC/ST Cooperatives:

From NCDC to State Govt.

From State Govt.

to Society

Direct funding from NCDC to Society o

Term loan 65% Term loan * 50% Term loan Minimum 50%

Subsidy  25% Share Capital * | 15% Subsidy 25%
Subsidy 25% Society Share*” | Rest of the cost
Society share 10%

For cooperatives in North-eastern States, Uttarakhand, Himachal Pradesh, Jammu & Kashmir, hilly and tribal

areas# & SC/ST Cooperatives:

“From NCDC fto State | From State Govt. to Society Direct funding from NCDC to Society
Govt. 4
Term loan 56.67% Term loan * 50% Term loan 1 Minimum 50%
| Subsidy  33.33% Share Capital * 6.67% Subsidy . .3333%

Subsidy 33.33%. Society Share™* “Restof the cost
Society sharé 10% o

** Minimum term loan 50% (Share capital of State Govt. will proportionately vary with increase in term loan).
“* Cost of land not exceeding 10% in rural areas and 20% in municipal areas of the project cost
2 P proj

can form part of the promoter’s contribution.

#  (Hilly areas is a place ai an altiwde of moie than 1,000 meters above means sea level).
(Tribal areas are notified/declared as tribal area by the Central/concerned State Govt.)
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G. GRAMIN BHANDARAN YOIANA

Ministry of Agriculture, Govt. of India introduced a scheme with the main objective of creation of scientific
storage capacity with allied facilities in rural areas to meet the requirements of farmers for storing farm produce,
processed farm produce and agricultural inputs; promotion of grading, standardization and quality control of ag-
ricultural produce to improve their marketability ; prevention of distress sale immediately after harvest by provid-
ing the facility of pledge financing and marketing credit; strengthen agricultural marketing infrastructure in the
country by paving the way for the introduction of a national system of warehouse receipts in respect of agricul-
tural commodities stored in such godowns and to reverse the declining trend of investment in agriculture sector
by encouraging private and cooperative sectors to invest in the creation of storage infrastructure in the country.

Assistance under the scheme shall be available on capital cost of construction of godown including the
cost of allied facilities like boundary wall, internal road, platform, internal drainage system, weighing, grading,

packaging, quality certification, warehousing facilities which are functionally required to operate the godown.

Pattern of funding

For Cooperatives other than NE States, hilly For Cooperatives in NE States, hilly areas * and SC/ST
areas and SC/ST Cooperatives Cooperatives : o o
From NCDC to State From State Gowt. to From NCDC to State From State Govt. to Society
Govt. Society Govt. S
Term loan 65% { Term loan 50% Term loan 56.67% Term loan - 50%
Subsidy 25% | Share capital 15% Subsidy 33.33% Share capital 06.67%
Subsidy 25% Subsidy 33:33%:
- Society share 10% Society-share 10%
* where the project site is located at a height of more than 1000 meters above sea level.

Note 11 In case of funding directly to society besides subsidy of 25% or 33.33% as the case may be, minimum loan shatl be 50% rest society’s own
contribution.

2 Subsidy subject to availability of funds from GOl,'otherwise equivalént loan from NCDC.
Mode of Release:
a. 50% of sanctioned amount shall be released on acquisition of land and submission of copy of contract of award
of work and balance 50% of sanctioned amount shall be provided after godown has reached roof level.
b. 100% sanctioned amount shall be released in case of renovation of godowns after work of repair and

renovation is taken up.

Special features of the scheme

«No ceiling on godown capacity for cooperatives funded through NCDC.
* Repair & Renovation of cooperative godowns are funded by NCDC only. |

Accreditation of Warehouses

NCDC has been notified as one of the Accreditation Agency for undertaking accreditation of
warehouses on behalf of Warehousing Development and Regulatory Authority (WDRA) set under the Warehousing
(Development and Regulation) Act, 2007. ' '

The main objective of the Warehousing (Development and Regulation) Act, 2007 are to make
provision for the development and regulation of warehouses and negotiability of warehouse receipts which will help%‘g
farmers to seek loans from banks against negotiable warehouse réceipts to avoid distress sale of their agricultural produce. %
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H. ZAPITAL INVESTMENT SUBSIDY (€IS) SCHEME

(For credit linked projects relating to construction / expansion/ modernization of cold storage and storages

including Controlled Atmosphere (CA) and Modified Atmosphere (MA) Stores, pre-cooling units

Horticulture produce).

The Government of India, during December, 1999 has introduced Capital Investment Subsidy (CIS) in order
to avercome problems of fluctuations in the prices of particularly of potatoes & onions. The scheme is being
implemented mainly through NCDC and NABARD by National Horticulture Board (NHB), an autonomous body

under Ministry of Agriculture (MOA).

Assistance from NCDC including back ended subsidy (BES) under the scheme is available for projects upto 5,000

ton capacity as per the following pattern of funding:

Through State Government Direct
Assistance NCDC to State Govt. State Govt. to Society
| " General  HS Areas General 1IS Areas General = HS Areas
States States States
loan 50% 35% 40 % 25% 35% 20%
BES* 40% 55% 40 % 55% 40% 55%
Share Capital v Hkk *EF 10 % 10% Kk * %k
' Total  90% 90% 90 % 90% 75% 75%
10 % by Society 25% by Society

“subject w availability from Government of India /NHB otherwise loan from NCDC for a cold

storage /CA store up to 3,000 ton capacity at prescribed normative cost. HS =Hilly and Scheduled Areas

Back ended subsidy is calculated at prescribed normative cost.
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Guidelines for direct funding by NCDC
(As amended upto 3™ June, 2004)
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A.  CRITERIA FOR DIRECT FUNDING:

1. Eligibility criteria:

)

(i1)

(iii)

(iv)

NCDC may extend direct assistance to existing cooperative societies in

operation for not less than three years.
Routing of NCDC assistance will be as follows:

(a) NCDC assistance (for Projects/working capital) not exceeding Rs.10 crores,
subject to the eligibility criteria, may be considered for direct funding.

These limits will be applicable to multi-state cooperatives also.

(b) Working capital loans to state/national level fererations may be considered

for direct funding on the merit of each case without any ceiling,

(c) NCDC assistance for the cooperatives, which are not eligible for direct
funding or otherwise would continue to be considered through state

governments.

(d) In exceptional cases, for the cooperatives which are financially strong, have
good track record of operations and credit worthiness, NCDC  assistance
above Rs.10 crores may be considered for direct funding with the approval

of the Board.

The society should have positive net-worth, not less than 100% of paid-up share

capital i.e. there should be no erosion in the paid-up share capital.

The society should not have any cash losses during last three years and there

should be net profit in at least two of previous three years.

Page 1 of 7



)

(vi)

(vii)

(vii)

(ix)

x)

(x1)

The debt equity ratio will normally be 65:35, depending on economic viability

of the project.

Value of assets to be mortgaged to NCDC as security against the loans should
have adequate security margin, normally not less than 1.5 times. (Shortfall in
the security may be made good by way of guarantee of a scheduled bank or an

FDR endorsed in favour of NCDC).

Working capital loans to cooperative societies/ federations may be secured by
hypothecation of stocks/ debtors/ other assets, keeping a minimum margin of
20%. If considered necessary, NCDC may ask for additional security of first or

second charge on the fixed assets.

If considered necessary, the society may be asked to open an Escrow account
with a scheduled bank/ state coop. bank/ distt. coop. bank in which part of sale
proceeds will be deposited for servicing NCDC loan. In case Escrow account is

opened with a distt coop bank, its financial position may be ascertained.

Audit of accounts should be complete upto previous year within 6 months of
close of the financial year. In cases where audit is undertaken by Government
auditors and it is not complete, in such cases accounts audited by Chartered -

Accountant's firm will be submitted.

The society seeking NCDC assistance, or any other society on which directors
of this society have been directors, should not have any major default in

repayment of loans to NCDC/ banks/ financial institutions.

NCDC, at its discretion, may ask for additional securities by way of one or more
of the following;:
- Government guarantee

. - Guarantee-of a scheduled bank

- Personal guarantee of the Directors and collateral security

Page 2 of 7
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New cooperative societies:

The cooperative societies, which are not in operation for more than three years, will

normally be assisted through state govts. However, such cooperatives in exceptional cases

may be considered for direct funding, if in addition to the eligibility criteria indicated in para 1

above (as applicable), following additional securities are made available:

(1)

(1)

(i) Government guarantee or Guarantee of a scheduled bank

(ii) Personal guarantee of the Directors and collateral security, if considered necessary.

Releases:

"NCDC will consider release of 25% ways & means advance only after the society has

raised 50% and utilised 40% of equity portion of the project by way of members/ state

govt. share capital and internal accruals.

As per existing procedure, subsequent releases will normally be considered based on
the expenditure incurred and committed expenses for one month as certified by a
Chartered Accountant. For the projects involving NCDC assistance above Rs.10 crores
or as decided by MD, NCDC, such certification may be carried out by a Chartered
Accountant from the panel approved by NCDC.

Processing Fee:

Processing fee shall be charged for NCDC sanctions above Rs.50 lakhs @ 0.5% of the

sanctioned amount, not exceeding Rs.2.50 lakhs (0.5% of Rs.5 crores) in each case. However,

processing fee shall not be charged for working capital loans upto one year.

5.

Repéyments:

Loans for directly assisted projects are repayable in quarterly or half yearly instalments.

Loans released to state governments would continue to be repaid in annual instalments.
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6. Funding through state/ distt. coop. banks:

Funding in consortium with or through state/ district cooperative banks or RRB’s or
scheduled banks may be considered if required. For this purpose, credit worthiness of the

banks may be assessed.

7. Existing Rate of Interest: (Clickable for current rate of interest) - Annexwre -y

Page 4 of 7
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1. Summarised Profit & Loss Accounts of last 3

Analysis of the Balance sheet

years

1.

Business Turnover

2.

Gross Profit before intt.,
depreciation and tax

Interest

Cash Profit (2-3)

Depreciation

Profit before tax (4-5)

Income Tax

Sl bl I Beal Pl Bead

Net Profit ( 6-7)

. Summarised Balance sheets of last 3 vears

Gross Block

Depreciation

Net Block (1-2)

Work in Progress

Investments

ol |

Total Fixed assets
(3+4+5)

Current Assets
i) Cash, Bank balance &
deposits

ii) Inventory

i11)Sundry Debtors

iv)Loans, advances and
Prepaid expenses

v) Others if any

Curerent liabilities

1. Working capital loan

2. Sundry creditors

3. Interest payable

4.Short term loans

5. Other provisions and
liabilities

Net working capital(7-8)

Long term loans &
deposits

Annexure-]

11.

Paid up Share capital

12.

Reserves (excluding
depreciation)

13.

Un-distributed profits(+)/
Accumulated losses (-)
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14.

Net Worth (11+12+13) or
(6+9-10)

15.

Net Disposable Resources
(10+11+12+13-6)

(For margin money
caluculations)

w

. Ratios

31.3.2002

31.3.2001

31.3.2000

Debt- Equity Ratio
(10)/(11+12+13)

Current Ratio
(7/8)

Cash profit to Turnover
Ratio (4/1)

Net profit to Turnover
Ratio (8/1)

4. Comments on financial statements, audit report and status of audit
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Annexure-II

Certificate regarding overdues of the society to NCDC and other institutions

1. This is to certify that (name of the society), as on date, is
not in default in repayment of loans and payment of interest to NCDC and any Financial

Institution/ Bank OR
Position of default in repayment of dues by the society to NCDC and other institutions

as on date is as follows:

Name of Lending | Loan received Principal Outstanding dues
Institution/ Bank repaid
Date Amount Principal Interest | Total
Overdue | Not yet
due
2. It is also certified that other cooperatives on which Directors of our Board are

Directors or associated with are not in default in repayment of loans and payment of interest to
NCDC and any Financial Institution/ Bank as on date. OR
Position of default in repayment of dues by the Cooperatives on which Directors of

our Board are Directors or associated with is as follows:

Name of | Name of | Nature of { Name of | Amount of | Reasons

Director defaulting association of the | Financial default and period
cooperative | Director with the | Institution/ of default
society defaulting society Bank

(Chief Executive of the Society)

Place:
Date:

Note : Strike out which is not applicabie
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National Cooperative Development Corporation

(Finance Division)

4, Siri Institutional Area, Hauz Khas, New Delhi - 110 016

No. NCDC:1-1/90-Budt.

To,

Sub:

The Secretary In-charge of Cooperation,
All State Governments & Union Territories

Interest rates on NCDC loans

Dear Sir,

10" January, 2017

In modification of our letter of even number dated 26.04.2016, interest rates
for NCDC loans are revised with immediate effect as follows:

Scheme

Effective rate
of
interest*

A. Term Loans:

{a) Through State Governments
(i) Weaker section programmes
(iiy Other programmes

{b) Direct funding
() Weaker section programmes
- upto project cost of Rs.50 lakhs
- above project cost of Rs.50 lakhs

(i) Other Programmes

10.40%
10.60%

10.65%
10.90%

11.15%

B. Working Capital Loans:

{(a) Through State Governments/ Direct
Funding '
(i) from 3 to 6 months
(i) above 6 months - upto 9 months
{iii) above 9 months - upto one year
(iv) above one year - upto two years

8.40%
8.70%
9.05%
9.30%

* Subject to payment of instalments on or before due date.
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2. Interest shall be charged on monthly compounding basis. In case of :

i. Term Loans through State Govts.. payment of interest shall be made
annually,

ii. Term Loans under Direct Funding, payment of interest shall be made
half yearly; and

iii.  Working capital Loans, payment of interest shall be made at such
intervals as indicated in the sanction/release letters.

Note:

(a) In case payment of the installment is not received on or before due date,
Normal Rate (effective + 1%) would be applicable.

(b) Penal rate of interest in case of default will continue @ 2.5% over and
above Normal Rate.

(c) Interest will be charged as applicable at the time of release of funds.

(d) Weaker section programmes:

() Fisheries
(i) Tribal/ SC & ST/ Hill Area Cooperatives
(iii) Dairy
{(iv) Pouitry
(v) Handloom
{(vi)Coir, Jute & Tobacco
{vil) Sericulture
(viii) Women Cooperatives
(ix) Labour Cooperatives
3. Period of Term Loans will be upto 8 years. Period for margin money

assistance (loan) will be upto 5 years and working capital loan will be provided upto
2 years.

4. Moratorium on term loans for the projects/ godowns will be upto 3 years,
depending on gestation period of the project. For margin money, working capital and
investment [oan to State Governments for share capital participation, there will be no
moratorium.

",

T
(o

e Ao,




5. In case of direct funding, processing fee shall be charged @ 0.5% of the
sanctioned amount, not exceeding Rs.3 lakhs (0.5% of Rs.6 crores) in each case.
However, processing fee shall not be charged for working capital loans upto one
year.

6. Other terms & conditions as contained in Corporation’s letter of even number
dated 15th October, 1984 shall continue to be applicable.

Yours faithfully,
Y

}

(Sudhir Kumar Sharma) '° friloiy.
Financial Adviser
Copy to:

1. The Registrar of Cooperative Societies,
All States & Union Territories.

2. The Secretary In-charge, Fisheries Department, ‘
West Bengal, Maharashtra, Karnataka, Gujarat, Kerala, Tamilnadu, Andhra
Pradesh, Telangana, Orissa, Manipur, Tripura, Assam, Nagaland.

3. The Addl. Secretary (Cooperation & Credit),
Ministry of Agriculture & Farmers Welfare, Deptt. of Agri. & Coop,
Krishi Bhawan, New Delhi.

4. The Joint Secretary (Cooperation & Credit),
Ministry of Agriculture & Farmers Wetfare, Deptt. of Agri. & Coop,
Krishi Bhawan, New Delhi.

5. Director of Fisheries,
West Bengal, Maharashtra, Karnataka, Gujarat, Kerala, Tamil Nadu, Andhra
Pradesh, Telangana, Orissa, Manipur, Tripura, Assam, Nagaland.

6. Director of Textiles,
Maharashtra, Tamil Nadu, Andhra Pradesh, Telangana, Kerala, Gujarat
Madhya Pradesh, Karnataka, West Bengal.

7. PPS to Secretary, Government of India, Ministry of Agriculture and Farmers
Welfare, Krishi Bhawan, New Delhi.

8. 8PS to MD/OMD/ED.
g All Chief Directors/Directors, NCDC, H.O.

10.  Chief Director (Topic), NCDC, Gurugram. With the request for wide
11.  All Regional Directors, NCDC. publicity of the revised rates.

12.  All Advisers, NCDC, New Delhi.

(Sudhir Kumar Sharma)' %/ /%o I}
Financial Adviser
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OFFICE PROCEDURE - DAK AND RECEIPT

S.C. Sen

Some Special Meanings:

i

ii.

iii.

iv.

vi.

Vii.

Viii.

ix.

Dak - Includes every type of written communication such as
letter, telegram, interdepartmental note, file, which is received,

whether by post or otherwise, in any department for its
consideration.

Receipt - Means dak after it has been received by the concerned
Section/Officer.

Central Registry - Means a unit within a department charged with
the responsibility of receiving, registering and distributing dak
meant for that department and includes functionaries like resident
clerk and night duty clerk.

Night Duty Clerk - Means a clerk on duty outside office hours
who performs the functions of the central receipt and issue section
during such hours. The term includes Resident Clerk also.

Centra! Receipt and Issue Section - Is a unit Within a

department consisting of the centra] registry and the central issye
section. '

Section - Means the basic work unit within a department,
responsible for attending to items of work allotted to"it. It is

generally headed by a Section Officer and includes “Cells”, “Unit”
and other like terms.

Branch Officer - In relating to a Section, means the officer who
takes the work directly from the Section.

Diarizing - Means registering of receipts in the section diary.

Messenger Book - Means a record, maintained in standard form
O&M 13 or any other form, of particulars of dispatch of non-postal

-communication and their receipt by the addressees.

Departmental Instructions - Means instructions issued by a
department to supplement or vary the provisions of Manual of
Office Procedure. (Appendix 55 of the Manual provides the list of

matters in respect of which departments may issue departmental
instructions).




II. Registration of DAK in the Central Registry:

The following categories of dak will be registered by the Central Registry in
the dak register:-

a)
b)
c)
d)

€)

f)

g)
h)

Telegrams, Wireless Messages and Telex Messages;

Registered postage dak;

Inter-departmental files;

Court summons and receipts enclosing valuable document, e.g.,
service books, agreements etc;

Parliament questions, resolutions, cut motions and references seeking
information relating to them;

Unopened inner covers containing classified dak;

Letters from Members of Parliament; and

Any other category covered by departmental instructions.

III.  Diarsing of Rceipts in a Section:

The diarist will diarise in the Section diary all receipts except the following
before they are submitted to the officers concerned of distributed among the dealing -

hands:-

a)

b)

g)

h)

receipts which, as a class, are adequately taken care of by a register
specially devised for the purpose (e.g. telephone bills which are
entered in telephone bills register);

receipts which are diarised in a computer;

communication received from Members of Parliament, for which a
separate register is maintained for watching their disposal;

unsigned communication on which no instruction have been recorded
by officers and on which no action is to be taken;

identifical copies of representations, save the one received first;

post copies of the telegrams unless the endorsement contains a
message-in-addition to that contained in the telegrams; -

petty contingent vouchers such as these relating to night duty or
overtime claims of staff, claims for coolie hire or conveyance hire,
chits asking for articles of furniture, stationery etc.;

routine acknowledgements;
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1) casual leave applications;
- J) copies of Miscellaneous circulars, office memoranda, extracts, etc.,

circulated by any Section for general applications, telephone lists,
notices of holidays, tour programmes, etc., and

k) any other type of receipts which under departmental instructions are
not required to be diarised.

IV. Application of disputed receipts:

At the time of perusal of receipts, the Section Officer will mark thesis-
sent receipts to the concerned Section. But if that Section to which a missent
receipt if forwarded, feels that it is not concerned with that receipt, the same

should be brought to the notice of the officer designated by the Department
for deciding allocation of disputed receipts.

% e do ke ko ok
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OFFICE PROCEDURE - ACTION ON RECEIPTS - II

*M.S. KASANA

Level of disposal and channel of submission:

L. An officer above the level of section officer will take action on a case in
accordance with the departmental instructions prescribing the level of final
disposal and channel of submission for each category of cases.

1.2. Each department will review the instruction on level of disposal and channel

of submission every year keeping in view the general principles of action on
receipts i.e., it leads to speedy and correct decision making process.

3. As far as possible it will be ensured that a case is seen either by under
secretary or a deputy secretary/director but not both.

1.4.  Wherever level Jumping is donme in accordance with the departmental
instructions in respect of any category of cases, each such case will pass
through on its return, all the levels in the prescribed channel of submission.

Direct submission of cases by senior assistants

2.1 Anassistant in a conventional section who has more than five years service in
the grade including at least six months in the concerned section may be
required to submit all the cases direct to the branch officer.
cases, assistants with less than five years service in the grad
permitted to submit cases direct to branch officer.

In appropriate
e may also be

2.2 All the cases directly submitted by assistants to the branch officer will as a
rule, go back to the assistants through the section officer. The section officer
will be free to bring to the notice of the branch officer any omission or flaws

in the submission of cases or the decisions taken and thus give an opportunity
to the branch officer to reconsider the matter.

Examination by officer

3.1 - An officer will regularly discuss with his staff to decide the course of action to

be taken on the various cases. Normally a single note will be put up to the
decision making level after the line of action 1s decided.

*Assis_tant‘Director, ISTM, New Delhi



For dealing with important problem solving issues, the technique of paper
writing may be used. This involves entrusting an officer or a group of officers
with preparing a comprehensive paper which will be put up straight to the
decision making level. The paper will contain the background to the problem
issues arising out of it, precedents if any, analysis of all relevant facts and
recommendations.

Departure from normal procedures or rules

4.1

In every case where a major or minor infraction, other than trivial, of the
existing procedures or rules is sought to be made, it shall be the responsibility
of the decision making authority to ensure that reasons are set out in writing,
warranting such a departure from the rules or procedures.

Examination and progressing of cases in which two _or more authorities are

consulted

5.1

Where two or more State Governments, Central departments or other
authorities are simultaneously consulted, the examination and where
necessary, tabulation of the replies will ordinarily be started as soon as replies
begin to arrive and not held over till the receipt-of all the replies or the expiry
of the target date.

Oral discussion

6.1

6.2

All points emerging from discussions between two or more officers of the
same department and the conclusions reached will be recorded on the relevant
file by the officer authorizing action.

All discussions/instructions/decisions which the officer recording them

considers to be important enough for the purpose, should be got confirmed by
all those who have participated in or are responsible for them. This is
particularly desirable in cases where the policy of the government is not clear
or where some important departure from the prescribed policy is involved or
where two or more levels differ on significant issues or the decision itself,
though agreed upon by all concerned, is an important one.

Oral instruction by higher officers

7.1

1.2

Where an officer is giving direction for taking action in any case in respect of
matters on which he or his subordinate has powers to decide, he shall

- ordinarily do so in writing. If, however, the circumstances of the case are

such that there is no time for giving the instructions in writing, he should
follow it up by a written confirmation of his earliest.

An officer shall, in the performance of his official duties, or in the exercise of
powers conferred on him, act in his best judgement except when he is acting
under instructions of an official superior. In the latter case, he shall obtain the
directions in writing wherever practicable before carrying out the instructions,
and where it is not possible to do so, he shall obtain written confirmation of
the directions as soon thereafter as possible. If the officer giving the
instructions is not his immediate superior but one higher to him in the
hierarchy, he shall bring such instructions to the notice of his 1mmediate
superior at the earliest.

"3
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Oral orders on behalf of or from Minister

8.1

8.2

Whenever a member of the personal staff of a Minister communicates to any

officer an oral order on behalf of the Minister, it shall be confirmed by him in
writing immediately thereafter.

If any officer receives oral instructions from the Minister or from his personal
staff and the orders are in accordance with the norms, rules, regulations or
procedures they should be brought to the notice of the secretary (or the head

of the department where the officer concerned is working in or under a non-
secretariat organization).

If any officer receives oral instructions from the Minister or from his personal
staff and the orders are not in accordance with the norms, regulations or
procedures, he should seek further clear orders from the secretary (for the
head of the department in case he is working in or under a non-secretariat
organization) about the line of action to be taken, stating clearly that the oral

instructions are not in accordance with the rules, regulations, norms or
procedures).

Confirmation of oral instructions

9.1

9.2

If any officer seeks confirmation of an oral instruction given by his superior,
the latter should confirm it in writing whenever such confirmation is sought.

Receipt of communications from junior officers seeking confirmation of oral
instructions should be acknowledged by the senior officers or their personal
staff, or the personal staff of the Minister, as the case may be.
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“FILE” js:

OFFICE PROCEDURE - FILING SYSTEM

systematic arrangement of paper

on a specific subject

in a folder

in chronological order
with an identifying number

*S.C. Sen

Filing system is necessary for (A) identification, (B) sorting, (C) storage and
(D) retrieval of papers. There are two systems now in use in the secretariat

CONVENTIONAL FILING
SYSTEM

FUNCTIONAL FILING
SYSTEM

File No.
Constituents:

8/3/90-Admn.1

(1) Standard Head or Main
Heading

(2) Standard Sub-Head or Aspect
Heading

A-22015(12)3/90-Admn ]
(1) Group/Function/Basic Head

2) Main/Activity/Primary Head
3) Sub/Aspect/Secondary Head
(4) Detail/Factor/T. ertiary Head

List of Subjects:

Each section maintains approved
lists of standard Heads and sub
Heads and reviews thee every
year.  Thus, the approach is
“Section” oriented.

Basic “Functions” of the Deptt. as
a whole are identified and listed.

For each “Function” main
“Activities” are identified.
Similarly for each “Activity”

various “Aspects” and if necessary,
different  “Factors”  for the
“Aspects” are identified and listed.
So the approach is towards the
Department as a whole. In fact, for
subjects common to all Department
e.g. Establishment, Finance,
Budget and Accounts, House
Keeping jobs, etc. the standard
functional file index including its
file numbering system issued by
the Department of Administrative
Reforms and P.G. is required to be
followed.

Numbering

Consecutive serial numbers are
allotted to the Standard Heads but
NOT to the standardized sub

heads. File number wil consists
of:

i) S.No. of the standard head.

i1) S.No. of the file opened during
the year

iii) last 2 digits of the year in
which oepened, and
i7)Abbreviated
identifying the Section.

symbol

Basic head is represented by a
single letter or by roman numerals
from I to X if the list is short or by
a group of 2 or 3 letters
abbreviating the function like
“Agr” for Agriculture.

Primary and secondary heads are
indicated by 2-digit numerals from
11 to 99 and ZERO is used as a
Separator between the two. [n fle
file number mentioned earlier, A,
22 & 15 represents basic, primary

and secondary heads respectively.
>t dly ieads respectiv



CONVENTIONAL FILING
SYSTEM

FUNCTIONAL FILING
SYSTEM

This is then followed by a
slant stroke as the separator.
The S.No. of the file opened
during the year is mentioned
thereafter and is followed by the
last 2 digits of the year of
opening of the file separated by
a slant stroke. The abbreviated
symbol of the section is then
written with a hyphen as
separator from the year.

If the file relates to a
standardized tertiary head, a 2-
digit numeral enclosed in
bracket is inserted before the
serial number of the file opened
during the year and after the
slant stroke preceding it.

Title of the file

The title will consist of (a)
standard Head (b) sub-head
(where it is necessary to have
more than one sub-head in the
title, the more abstract or general
should precede the concrete and
specific) and (c) the question or
issue in brief, where necessary
including the specific institution,
person, place or thing involved.
Each part will begin with a
capital letter and will be
separated by a bold dash.

Ilustration
File No.8/3/90-Admn.
Title: Promotion - Group 'C’

employees — By Departmental
Examination from LDC to UDC.

The title will consist of
appropriate standardized heads
(from the primary heads
downwards each separated by a
hyphen) followed by a brief
content to  describe the
particular question, issue, event,
person, thing, place, etc.
involved. The basic head may
not be included.

IHustration

File
Admn. 1.
Title:  Promotion - Group 'C’
employees — By Departmental
Examination from LDC to UDC.

No.A-22015/(12)3/90-
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File Register — A record of files opened during the year wil] be kept in a file register
(Appendix 22 of the Manual) to be maintained by the diarist. A list of approved
standardized heads alongwith serial numbers identifying them should be pasted at the

beginning of the register. The pages allotted to the standard heads in the register should
also be indicated against each.

Part File - If a file is under submission to higher officers or is under reference to some
other section/Department and is not likely to be available for some time, a part file may
be opened to deal with a receipt or a note which cannot wait or when on such a
note/receipt two or more sections or officers are to be consulted. Each part file will hae
a distinct number e.g. part file I, Part file II etc, A part file will be amalgamated with
the main file at the first available opportunity, removing the duplicate papers, if any.

Volume — When either the “notes” or the “correspondence” portion of a file becomes
bulky (say exceeds 100 pages) it will be stitched and marked “Volume I”. Further

papers on the subject will be added to the new volume of the same file, which will be
marked “Volume II” and so on.

Transfer, Reconstruction and Renumbering of File - On transfer of work from one
department/section to another, the entire related record including files - “closed’ and
current both — will immediately be transferred. The closed files will not be divided,
reclassified or renumbered in the new deptt./section. Similarly, the new deptt./section
will endeavour to close the current files at the earliest possible stage and to open new
files as per their own scheme of classification for dealing with the matter further.

Movement of files and other papers

1) Movement of files (alongwith that of linked files and/or

recorded files) will be entered in the file movement register
(Appendix 23 of Manual).

11) Movement of files received from other departments/sections
and other receipts which have not been brought on to a file in

the receiving section will be noted in the “Remarks” column of
the section diary.

Fokdek k



10.

11.

12.

14.

15.

16.

17.

FILE REGISTER

STANDARD MAIN HEADS

Personal Files
Personal matters
Budget, Accounts & Audit

Office/Establishment Expenses
(Or Office Maintenance)

Purchases
Advances
Vigilance & Security
Parliament matters
V.LP. References
Schooly Issues
Hostel Issues
Foreign Aid
Infrastructure
Policy
Competitions
Reports & Returns

Miscellaneous
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I1-20

21-30

31-40

41 -43

44

45 - 50

51-60

61 -65

66 - 74

75 -84

85

86

87

38

89 - 94

95 -100
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RECORDS MANAGEMENT-AN OVERVIEW

, * M.S.KASANA
Introduction:-
1. Because of the ever-increasing volume of documents that must be maintained,

the efficient management of records is becoming more important. A well-designed,
efficient records management programme can significantly reduce an organization’s
operating costs. Furthermore, an efficient records management programme helps to

assure that an organization’s records are properly cared for. Improperly maintained

-records are more likely to be misplaced or destroyed by mistake. An effective

programme provides the protection an organization’s records accumulation needs.

' What Constitutes Records

2. Records refer to informational documents used to carry out fnnctions, include
forms, letters, memoranda, reports and manuals on paper or non-paper media.
Records are tools of management, memory of an organization and source of

information.  All these documents which have future reference value constitute

records.

E Why Records:-

3. It becomes necessary to retain records:- oo

(i)  for planning and scheduling Govt’s activities as information required for
the purpose cannot be retalned by human memory. /

(i)  Retention of records is legal requirement in certain cases, r/ pfoduction of

‘ papers in a Court of law.

(iii) For fixing responsibility for matters coming before Audit and Parliament
and its committees and other Apublic bodies. Govt. is accountable to the
people through legislature.

(iv)  For historical value-it may contain facts and figures about political ann
socio-economic conditions amounting to wealtl, of information for the
posterity. ‘

*Assistant Director, ISTM, JNU Campus(Old), New Delhi.



(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

for ensuring element of rationality in Govt, it is necessary for the
decision-makers to be impartial in the treatment of demands and
grievances of all citizens, records of past decision precedents and
procedures assist in fulfilling this objective.

to make available needed facts, figures, correspondence, etc. for future
planning. Records contain information which may sharpen the process of
decision-making and problem solving.

to ensure continuity in administration. Human memory is short, personnel
are changed due to retirement, promotion and transfer.

To ensure that tax-payer’s interests are protected at all times and that there
is no irregularity in financial transactions.

For providing evidence in case of disputes.

4. Records Management refers to the activities involved in controlling the life

cycle of a record, beginning with its creation and ending with its ultimate disposition.

This leads to prevention of creation of unnecessary documentation, early

identification of papers of lasting or enduring value and systematic planning of

- retirement procedures.

The Records Cycle

5. The records proceed through the life cycle illustrated below:-

Creation

Utilization

Storage

Retrieval

Disposition
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Objectives and Principles of effective Records Management

6. ()

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

Appraisal: Review at appropriate stages, starting from the stage of lagt
action on a current file,

Weeding: There should be constant weeding and review of the records
so that the cbst of maintenance of records is kept to the minimum.
Accessibility: It should provide an easily accessible source of
information relevant to the changing needs of the organization.
Control: There should be control on the growth of record since its
inception/creation till ﬁnai disposal stage.

Speed in Retrieval: The records should be kept in such way that they
should be capable of being retrieved quickly.

Economy: Economy should be observed by ensuring that: (a) records
occupy mlmmum space; (b) cost of equipments for storing records is
low: v(c) cost of retrieving information is low.

Retention Schédule: It should provide for a uniform and systematic

schedule of retention and disposal of records.

We can encode the above seven principles as “AWACSER”

Activities involved in Records Management

7. The main activities involved in Records Management can be grouped in the

following six categories:-

()  Creation (i) Classification s
(i)  Transfer (iv)  Maintenance v '
(v)  Preservation (vi)  Review & Weeding

*okok koK



| . { 1{

.

~ E-FILE (DIGITAL
DOCUMENT FILING
~ SYSTEM)



(— — 1~ r— r—

—

PSSO

E - File (Digital Document Filing System)

E - File (DDFS)

Some Commonly used options

MIS Division, NCDC, New Delhi’

Page 1 of 13
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E-File (Digital Document Filing System)

1. Creation of Existing Files:

Step i: Click on File menu and then click on New File.

0 oo Files Wish Ne i Atvaned Serach 2270 Farmlr:m Toark Fras  Figs nciar Ms Sadi fiste o

e Fitn Fawr Seckon et
AR v At .
“Soarch | Rosm
N B R g Renen
= ok b Soston Priory Semsct Waewvesi Un ™~ AKPAL
& e e
Noshes availshie
i A AK SINGH
(AT
~
ok Fveard . Fary
R - Abhishek Meh
Qo Seen s NoiSeen ¢y NonElesonic 5P Linked o~ MAIGEs o Movementbiztor, . i3Retumed . Duposals o Conddanhat (3 Starad R

Admin ko

A" Romarks  #KDIF For Agproval MW Anproved Drsts © hde To Watchhist © 2™ adden To Walchhist

~
~
a.v AUMIN HCDC
~,

Amarievt Kati

Step ii: Click on Digitized File? checkbox first then enter the File no. of existing File, select
custodian of {le in Owner dropdown list, Select Main subject, enter the subject of file in Subject

Document Fiing System

-
. Creme File et Aot ets

Site Vype Basic Infonztion
= v i o Fhabe Faamity
T GENERIL Normal .

Tute Gaty

i GOI_COMBUNICATION .
ALLR AR

o AR DA o
i
L COURT_CASES . »
z»‘. n AKPAL
= i, PEMTIONS I S Lt

e N ¢ Bl G

)

AR, SINGH
B Nt

T2

i ile Amibane

Adimin Ha

~
) & - ADMIN BCEX:
o A Aamariesr Kanr

Ha auripwas dedine
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2.

E-File (Digital Document Filing System)

Step iii; After creating the existing file in DDFS, old notes/ correspondances may be attached
under Attachment menu for reference while Noting in DDFS. Click on Add files button and attach

k| ciena 71205 s

B & i W e T . onstooh g O G Adrs. e e i s oS DA MY v -

iotes sty Docmmens  Degatn  SowxtEad v X

Aachment Freview Aacivnent Informaten

Creation of Inward/ Dak:

Step i: Scan the DAKSs received in PDF format only. Also enable OCR (Optical Character
Recognition) under settings in Scanner Software installed in your Computer. Enabling OCR will
allow you to copy the content of PDF file in E-file (DDFS) software.

Step ii: Click on Inward menu and then click,on New Inward.

Last Luogin
e 2050 1531285

al Document Filing System

) +F Inwards With Mz Paiiat wards  Sentivuuds  Irwsids uncsr my Seat

W@ kCE Framy
) an v Eteckonic M
7 Show 25 * Entes Seaen B Ashem
':2 wiveant Mv. Priesity Subiact Sentac A AKPAL
i o Wvwaras avallable. 3 R R
A - AK SINGH
oHEE s
Buk Forward  Pork ~
<P Viewed .o NotViewad | §§Aucepld . 4 Pronessed Phyzically %  Abbishek Mehia
HEE S SO
& Admin Ko
P& RDMINNCDE
: M - Amatleal Raur

MIS Division, NCDC, New Delhi Page 3 of 13
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3. Attaching the Inward/DAK to a File:

E-File (Digital Document Filing System)

Step iii: Enter the name & address of Sender of the DAK, Ref. No. & Ref. Date of the DAK,
Select Main Subject, enter Subject Description of the DAK. Click on Browse & Attach to attach
the scanned copy of DAK in the Inward. Select the Seat of Head of the Division / Regional

{35t mward Enlered No 205 Yasr 2045 (%

Sender & Subject

#dbrass Lz Aozt Lol Andreys L ¢

felreniptin Rowren: s Lok

Sender E-moil It

ts Eiging Fila {Inwara?

X sddwonal information

Anschments inward Description

Descripbon Fiie Name Actious

Ko Atachments

Expactod Sl G o nal - Save & Fomard | Sl Al Sonlte

LI

Step i: Click on the Inward No. to see the Inward details.

7 "2 OUF: - bighw Co

€ ¢ ¢ hedar

s Dicussions  Emad

Search Reoerds  Se%ngs

e
@ 2 Inwrds With Me Newinwarg  Fatked lnvants . Sentimsaids - Iards under nty Saat
i e Farrr S
3 v Eleewi -
2
[ Nochatti) | AM
55
¥4 .
Show: 3] v iEewies Search B L Rewerh
Privgiey Satect Soncer Forvasued Cn
. Y215
36201500 Norraal Accounts - Test invord Testinward 30.09.2015

Shern $43 2 of § srifies .

AV VIDYAVATHY

Bulk Furwerd - Pk e
ABDUL WANAF

3 Viewed . Netviewed €3 Actepied - - 3 Processed Physiaily

ABHILASH $.0

Abin Shankar

227 222 2
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E-File (Digital Document Filing System)
Step ii:
a. If the Inward/ DAK is to be processed at some other seat then select that seat in the
Expected Seat list and click on Forward button.
If the Inward/ DAK is to be processed at your seat then clic
Senter & Subjact |
g |
, Amachments Inwarg Descrpoon §
L S
! D :
: Adaid |
a B 5 Hiests » :
Step iii: After accepting the Inward/ DAK, It has to be placed inside a file to process it. Click on
Add to file button to place the Inward/ DAK inside a file.
m?uw&dcm;'ﬁwﬂk. (i
Sender & Subject :
’ & adsacnstintmaton l
AnRCEmMEMs iBeoriow 3 2nzck: 15 inward Deseripuon ,
MIS Division, NCDC, New Delhi Page 5 of 13
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E-File (Digital Document Filing System)

Step iv: Selec
selecting the radio button an

Ho Fervared Commenh 3skake

Sancai ;sm;acz

San b S0t TS

Seiten

*F e s A

8 sadsional loriasto
ATaThEmems .
Deessigtioh

Lens

d click on Attach button.

. Files Searsh NG v

£ e

e
N fsaunt of Finpecio) S
2 oS g chon - oS i

E E1

Purchase - Ptchas
. ers D

o e

t the File in which the Inward/ DAK is to be placed from the List of File by

EvasiedSoat | AT T 5K Tranibig

Fhearthie & Seids

259 Pty Comnpol

4. Noting in a File (Processing of Inward/DAK):

Step i: Click on the file no. in which the new Inward/ DAK is attached.

Stepl:

7 5 06# - Bget Godfmer

Shesopg 1101511 ey

e»Seen  uobotSeen e Men Eincuenk

#Drshs For approval : MiZppcoved Dealis

Dcmasns Foi Searh Repats Sefres Taws

Sexuan Proty St
QICESS Mot tsas of Fieanoal Sanckon - Iasore b2 261
gleiee i Meged - Mewmen Bstory o Pewmse . Dagoat

© 249 Toatehisl 7 Added To Mathissl

MIS Division, NCDC, New Delhi

Posbed Fles  Tioth Fies  Eaos Ui My Se2 daw ©

g e

Fgumver O

1605 THI5 ITDNST

Sut Frwaid

o Corbentiat | EGSharzd  x Premaiks

ABHILASH 5.0

Abi Shankar
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E-File (Digital Document Filing System)

Inward/ DAK will be available inside the File. Click on the Inward No. to view it. Noting
may be done in the Blank editor. To view the Inwa HAK and Noting simultaneously click on
File View. On clicking File jew, The screen_will be divided in two parts where you can sge the
Inward/ DAK in left side of the }oting Editor on the right side of the screen.

Step i:

+ ® wowam  Aadmes

ff @ rxport 6 Forward i Formad

5. Drafting in a File:

apn the Draft. To create a new draft, click on Add Draft.

Dozheas il v Ealmey
Seawts

Appreved it
KOT_GPPROVEC

HOT_2PPROVED

VHINS

Page 7 of 13
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E-File (Digital Document Filing System)

in the blank editor.

Step ii: Draftigg may be done

% Drafts & Darnments

Geraial Form

i Selgrta Drar Tomplale fgraral Fonn

> Pl

tatwmston  AftactuneT

3 namm Oocuments . Despach  Scrwifad R

Kt £ Hile tres 1D

IR o B Iy ::”::_VH"'

6. Forward Filetoa Seat:

Step i: Once the noting and drafting are completed, File may be forwarde
comment/ approval of draft. Click on the Forward button to send the file
you need to send the file to a sgat other than your reporting seat, you may

by o5 approvad

MIS Division, NCDC, New Delhi

d 1o higher seats for their
to your reporting seat. If
use Forward++ button.

BT o e (v

Fieven ' Edior | hows | o

Page 8 of 13




E-File (Digital Document Filing System)

7. Approval of draft and return the file to sender:

Step i: Click on File no. to open the file to see the noting and give your comment.

dfsankt]

FaadFilvs  TiaviFiles g, Uinder By Best L

‘&g: LE Ereken Fan
» v & v
| Swareh | - Resel
)
show g5 v Entries O Reter
Secken Priorey Subject Recrved On %]
TXRSC Hormal |ssue of Finaackl Sanction -income tav 2014 30.00.2045 (DDIS}; b ~
CICASC Horms 2scounts - adada 22052015 B ~
" T Pur-hase - Purthase of Campulers - Fwrhase Camo o - "
v i clessc ders for Computer Lab 7902078 OIS AT
N
A CICESC smrmal Miscailaneous iGDY -  yasre Jrace 18.00.2015 [ODIER [}
4 . . , Abdy
crcase R :'J:'(hase Suschase of Compusars - purchae o 208 1509 2016 n A
26220500 - B
CICASC Notmsh Hiscailangous (DD) - letier 16.00.215 (W] P

o

Step ii: You may write your comment in the blank

et

Fag View

fwis ot B & Rapesh Khuraas, DG 134082018 13PN
Inwand Atiached | 332201500
T Rajusn iz, DTS, 085015 3B PM
Liav be 3pproved.

] Select A

ot @ rarward Braan T
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E-File (Digital Document Filing System)

Step iii:

versions of draft click on Draft History.

Click on a draft no. to view it, modify it (if required) and approve it. To see the different

# Drafis

Shewi: 40

G DR - Leder
Shuning 1353 o 3 2tnes

Step iv: Cligk
preview it by
sender to convert¥he draf

&+ Bovkmaike

Ha bookmarks availatie

Tepie  Tes: Dralt Latee

- FRCEC]

FEATASE Comoks Duaf uzing Tarplate S FS

Tt
Created dete Anpeeed 20 Slavig Ly H
3005.201% HOT_&'PROVED Te5) Deofl Letter H i
17.08.201% NETT_SPPROVES weame tv , :
17092015 NOT_APPROVED Wncoms 13 &
i

R Sty avid

on Approve button to approve the draft. Before approving the draft, you may
icking on Preview button. After approving the draft you may return the file to the
in to document and despatch it to receipient.

Show Hice Mot LsiOns L

Bryw gz A Ess B-0=0

’ e
R oosaRs @ Apieve P

MIS Division, NCDC, New Delhi
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E-File (Digital Document Filing System)

8. Creating document from draft and despatch the document:

Step i: Click on the Green Box to directly go and view the list of approved draft.

M -

Purked Fies  TrackFies  Fint Under by Sedt

151 £ b Secton A
¥ . = v
® heeit 25 Enres ¥, ked
Svation Eraoniiy Subees Reened G
CRAK Nennai Istus of Financiat Sanction - Income fex 2014 30002018 [CO15);
o
M AVVIDYAVATH
Buik Forward . Buta B
- ABLUL MARAY
anSeem | o NotSeen L iiNonEechonc | Unbed  L-ieged - Mosmenlbistay | i Rewined Deposats o Conkeentisl - B Shared 5 Fremarks P e
i0rats For spproual © WiApproved Drams -\ Age ToVWaimowst | 772 200ed To Warchis - Aol Basneet V
£ - Abis Rnadar Runpe.
% ABMILASHSY
- )
% Mo Shankan

nasd

/

Bnna 7 HiSe Piotes

# Drafts & Documents

General Letter

®

Target s

Sarun

Prvate {to Fiia) v [ote X1

Carpzet

=i preview

4 Bozkwaiks

o Boowmarks wailadle

oot & fomard 8 Fovard hr E share
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E-File (Digital Document Filing System)

Step iii: Click on Add New Despatch.

Y seideinLis T R M)
B [he o 266THWDL Aftachnenfa - hotes - Draths Doowmentz m Scrachiad
§ i oeitined Pucvine of Guvrgte st Porchwse Surmpes e Gnp.ter Lah” x B TR 2 - LT

Cespatctes
shan’ 2% v _Ertier
Tespatch Ho Fepic el #

To [

Hie Gaspatcien avadabie

Step iv: A document may be despatched to DDFS user through DDFS Despatch option and to a

non DDFS user through General Despatch option. Select the document to be despatched.

as Circulation or DDFS Inward.

a. Using DDFS Despatch: Mode may be selected

Aatoera Maes  Drans "

[ @ 500 Puchsse Puecnase of Gompiters Parciase Comasiers far Comgte: L9

Cesparch Dewils
(IR G Dot

Raterence it

Croumat - Lait SHAANSTD
Desark:30-50p- 2015 L368PH
Msibment. waC

i - 335400 MY g TOEZO1ST0H

[tk bt Hozs o Sensit
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E-File (Digital Document Filing System)

[l Seats by selecting Department/

Receipient’s seats may be selected from ‘
and click on Add button” Click on

Section. Select a seat from left side
Despatch buttpn to send the docu

Detavit Despakh Seal
et Tethon
HeasChce vi'y e

Casyabn Sests

Hotty Recpients vis SWs It

B Evport, @ Forward W fory

ode may be selected as Postal or Email. Enter email ids

b. Using General Despatch:
separated by comma (,) , type your message and click on Despatch button. The

document will be despatched to receipient’s email.

1 ccFsDaspat
~
o etewce Trpe I
D ocoment- Saeera Fuen S-12015048
i DOCUMENT o
1 Dated:75-Au0-2016 1041 A
Sacument - 08 Feim 5 120V6-HS
DOTUMERT s}
Dolod:2-hu2-2015 1058 44 .

Gespuch Datails Fail Detoils

i
| onzars Gt 3

L [zate Gommeits

Wt as rept: For vsasa

AR

Englist

Nighty Recipients 13 SMS T}
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" activities and promofion of household business and ente

INTEGRATED COOPERATIVE DEVELOPMENT PROJECT ICOP
~ CONCEPT, OBJECTIVES, STRATEGY AND UNIQUE FEATURES
o I -

1. BACKGROUND

NCDC has been providfng financial assistance to cooperatives since ts ihception based on
commodity or activity approach. On a review of NCDC schemes, it was felt that there was need o
look at the business operationé and financial requirements of a village society in its entirety and
dovetall various schemes of NGDC to provide ﬁnéncial assistance in accordance with its needs,

| bevelopment of PACS as a mult-purpose entity had been identified as one
of the Seventh Plan. In view of the above, NCDC prépared a scheme for |
 of PAGS on the basis of an area-based project aproach. The comprehen
integrated development of primary cooperatives in the agricultural and
horicuture, sericulture, piggery, poutty;. ishery,
,hahdloom. nural industries and artisans so that
ﬁbmnt service and business organizations for b,

of the major objectives
nlegrated development
sive scheme envisaged
allied sectors_such as .
elc. as well as the non-farm sectors fike
these societies are strengthened to become a
inging socio-economic transformation in the mral"'.

L PROJECTOBJECTIVES

The scheme lays emphasis on the area based =d¢velo;‘)'r€nenl in agriculture and allied

rprisé with special focus on helping the
weaker sections in selected district $hrough cooperatives. The broad objectives of the scheme
are:- | -

()] To undertake economic develqpment of selected district through cdoperativé efforts,
specially in the area of agriculture, agricultural related/allied activities, rural and house
hold enterprises and cooperative banking 'Icré_dit and deposit mabiliza

tion among rural
populace. '



3

)

o strengtnen the' existing primary agri,crrlturalv‘credit societies (PACS), primary

cooperative marketing societies, other funcional cooperatives such as fisheries,
handloom weavers' elc. in.the project area by providing infrastructural support and
facilities, margin money for raising extra working capital o increase/diversify business
and arrangrng for training and manpower development opportunities to build
professional competence in the societies.

To develop primary agricultural credit socreﬁes as multi-purpose societies to cater to
the overall needs of the farming community, with special reference fo credit, deposit
mobilization, supply of agricultural rnputs consiimer goods, irrigation facilties,
extensron faciliies and other services for marketing of agricultural produce.

- o

' Toyeorient the agricultural and other credit programme to cater to the needs of sman

and marginal farmers and weaker sections and strengthen organizational structure to
meet timely credit requirements and development of a support system for timely

v)

To prepareé vertmlly integrated project for each selected district through backward and
forward [i nkagec between.the primary socrehes and the district leve! and state level

o cooperahve rns!rtutrons

(V")

. .

(vil)

To review the exrstmg cooperative structure and wherever necessary. revarnp the |
structurelmerge societies, drssolve socretres and create new socrehes with a view to
meet the needs of the members.

To promote new functional - cooperatives wherever not existing, for special
commodities services and activities in the non-famm sector, particularly to provide
servrceslsuppres fo members engaged in non-form occupatrons and fo generale
employment opportunities.

To strengthen the cooperative infrastructure in the project area to provide a wide range
of integrated service for increasing production and productivity, employment, income
and the cooperative delivery system to enable them to contribute their share towards

the achievement of national targets.
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WM. BROAD STRATEGY

N

- (Vi) Implementation through a special créated cell and

(X)  Foster verfical, horizontal, backward and forwarg

Ultimately, the project must lend to si‘réngthening of cooperatives in the district, make them

more efficient and efféctive to help in improvement of socio-economic conditions of members.

The broad strategy for implementation of the schere is as follows:-

() Creation of the infrastructural facilities both in farm and non-farm sector to faciitate
diversified business activities (trading, marketing and processing).

.01') Strengtﬁening the financial base by providing sharé-capital and margin money

assistance for activities such as marketing of agriculture and other produce, supply of
consumer articles efc. : )

_ 1
of oil seeds, ﬁce mills, Atta Chakki, Dal Mill
F&V units and service activities such '8 power generation, transport, hospitality' &
~ tourism, healthcare, rural housing and education ete, ’

(im' Creation of small size units in pmcesshg

(v)  Preparation of a comprehensive business development
' and effective utilisation of resources, :

plan for better goal orientatior-;

(V) Streamiining of systems and procedqtes”for better business and ména'geﬁ'al efficiency.

(vi) Traitiing of sociely personnel, members of Board of Man

. agement and ordinary -4
members to improve their skills and wpability and create n

ecessary awareness,
(W) Motivation through study visits and trainings and incentives for betier performanca,

project implementation team to
achieve the targets in the stipulated period.

linkages to sustain and enhance the
member’s interest and business prospects of the societies. . |



V. FUNDING -
. The funding is done as 75% - 85% loan component and 15% - 25% in the form of subsidy.
Project subsidy is available to only cooperafively underdeveloped ahd least developed states, for
all components related to agriculture and allied sector activities. However, in cooperatively
- developed slalgé, subsidy @15% has been allowed for weaker section programrnes only during
the remaining period of 12t Fivé Year Plan. While subsidy is @ 20% in underdeveloped states, it
is 25% in least developed states. Cost of project implementation i.e. PIT, manpower development
& training, mcentrves monitoring and DPR is provided as 100% grant in-aid (50% by NCDC from
Central Sector and 50% by the concemed State Govt.). In case of special category states (North “
eastem and Hil States), 100% grants-rn-ard is provided by NCDC from Central Sector for this
component Overall subsrdy oomponent including project implementation cost should not exceed
30% of the lotal project cost. 'Subsrdy assistance is, however, subject to avallabrlrty from?
Government of india. ‘

V. WPLEMENTATION

™

o A multi-disciplinary expert group prepares a déta_iled project report, taking into acoounf
local résource endowment and potential for deveiopment through the existing cooperative set up.
The existing development schemes and plans operating or proposed to be implemented in the

~district are also considered, based on which a perspective plan is made for the de\relopment of

- agriculture and allied secior, rural and industrial seclor, consumer and banking sector. These are
divided into sub-seclors like business planning, infrastructure planning, production planning,
human resource planmng and financial planning for a period of 4-5 years. The report also includes
development of Iinkages. policy changes required, rationalization of rules and procedures etc. for
effective implementation of the projects.

The State Goyemment whrle sending the proposal for the selection of district also identifies
the project |mplementmg agency o be associated with the preparation of the project report in time
as also for rnonrtonng the implementation of the project after the same has been sanctioned.
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The Project Implementing Agency through the constitution of a Project Implementation Team

espgbially for execution of the projecf plan ensures:-

i To provide financial assista

scheme.

i, To assist the cooperative societies in formulation of Business Dévelopment Plans,
i, To provide management consultancy services and trainin

nce to the cooperative societies covered under the

g for the elected and paid
management of the society. . ’
. - Tomonitorihe implementation of the project. A
V. - Toensure that the cboperative societies have democfatically elected management,
vi.  To ensure proper training to the employees of the codﬁéfative societies, craftSmen,
- artisans and other 'membe}s in the project atea, 1
 Unlaue Features of ICDP

" The concept of ICDP and lts strategy whereby all passible and resources of cooperative |

development are integrated in one project is u
in a specific area the requisité support a '
inclusivé development of cooperatives by
‘mteresi of farmer and non-farmer members,

nique in the cooperative secior, Itintends to provide,

exploiting the available local resources in the best
The main distinguishing'.features of ICDP. are - A

- Identification of gaps and needs of societies by an independent e
field survey, analytical study and consultation with concered authorities.
- Esﬁmating the financial requireméqt to fill the gap and meet the requirements of societies
" interms of infrastructure, machinery, faciities, working capital and training and manpower
development through appraisal, scrutiny and due consultations,
- Focus on integration of linkages between DCCB and Primary Societies, societies at
different tiers and horizontally placed primaries for sharingvof. resources/support and

delivery systems in the interest of farming community and allied sector artisans

promoting
cooperative entrepreneurship,

- Special team (PIT) for execution of the Project plan within the fi

, pulated period and
allocated funds. ’

nd assistance | in-a package form for all roung. and

i

e

X%
‘A,

xpert group baskd on *



- Coordinated fnoniton‘ng of implementation with involvement of all concerned authorities
having stake in developméptal process of the rural economy through cooperative efforts.
Open-ended project to allow diversifications and. modifications wherever and whenever

required for better utilization of funds and improved results.
Having features of integrated funding, integrated support, integrated implementation and

integrated monitoring with a wider objective of integrated and inclusive development
" through ‘increased businesses and employment generation on the one hand and

strengthening cooperative jnsﬁlutions imbibed with democratic and social values, on the

other. :
For the coordination among various agencies/departments at the district and State level, a

district level coordination commitiee under the chaimanship of District Collector having
heads of various departments / agencies at district level as members and a State Level
Coordinaticn Committee under the Chaimanghip of Registrar of Cooperative Societies, as
Chairman and heads of concemed departments l-égencies at the State level as members
are constituted. _

- During implementaﬁon fo_r ascertaining the progress ard problems of cooperatives and
progress of project faciliies at micro-level, the Project Implementation Team carries out
regular monitoring in the project. As an integral part of the project, assistance is also
provided for creation of a project monitoring cell preferably at the oficeof the RCS to
coordinate and monitor the progress of various projects in the State.

- The monitbring at NCDC Ieyel is done through _regular feedback fro: ite projects in the
prescribed monitoring proforma and also.by review mission consisting «i# Senior Officers of
NCDC. ‘

Benefits of the Project
. Based on the experiences on implementation of Integrated Cooperative Development Projects in

- various districts, following benefits have been observed:

" - Increase in the active membership
- Increase in profit of PACS
- Increase in non-credit business
- Increase in Agri-input distribution, marketing and processing of agricultural produce
- Improvement and increase in distribution of credit
- Rise in investment through deposit mobilization in rural areas
-~ Improvement in loan recovery -
-~ Increase in income of members
- Improvement in capacity and awareness of members
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Surplus or Deficit

The statement of operations (a.k.a. statement of revenue and expenses) contains information
regarding:

* how much revenue was earned by the organization during the year. This will
include both cash received and revenue earned but not yet collected (j.e.
amounts receivable).

* the expenses the organization incurred such as those for wages, operating
costs, etc.

* the difference between the revenue and e penses, which is the organization’s
surplus or deficit for the year. '

If the statement of financial position presents a snapshot at the beginning and end of the fiscal
year, the statement of operations paints a picture of the year itself.

The statement of operations contains information concerning where revenues come from and
how they were spent. The excess (or deficiency) of revenues over expenses is the number that
people refer to as the "bottom-line". This number tells readers whether the organization was
able to match its expenses with revenue or if expenses outweighed revenues during the year.

Changes in What is Owned and Owed

The statement of cash flows provides information about how the organization generated and
spent its cash during the year. It compliments the first two statements. The statements of
financial position and operations provide a snapshot of the financial position of an organization
at a specific date and a sense of its economic performance over the period but do not always
clearly show why there were changes in assets, liabilities, and net assets. For example, an
organization receiving a capital donation to buy a piece of land or a building would not normally
reflect that donation as revenue. Instead, it would be shown as an increase in capital assets on
the statement of financial position and, typically, shown as a direct increase in net assets.
Another example is that of repayment of debt. If an organization pays off a bank loan, that
payment is not an expense. It would result in a direct reduction of a liability. In both of these
Cases the transactions would be disclosed in a statement of cash flows.

Note that for many small operations, the changes in an entity's assets, liabilities, and net assets
can generally be seen from the statement of operations. As a result, many not-for-profit
organizations without significant debt, capital assets and deferred grant balances often do not
Prepare a statement of cash flows. :

- What Goes into Financial Statements

As discussed above the objective of financial statements i to provide users with an idea of an
entity’s financial position, its economic performance over a period and its changes in assets,
liabilities, and net assets. We will now take a detailed look at the more common categories that
appear in financial statements.

Assets

The first section of assets represents the current assets. Current assets comprise cash and other
assets (e.g. short-term investments and accounts receivable) that would usually be converted
into cash in the normal course of operations within the year.
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Cash

Cash includes petty cash on hand, and cash in bank and credit union accounts. Note that the
cash balance is adjusted for:

*  cheques written before the year end that are not cashed until after the year
end

 cash deposited in the bank after the year end that was received by the
organization before the year end.

These two adjustments ensure that the cash balance represents the actual cash on hand and
available to the organization at the reporting date.

Short-term investments

Short-term investments include items such as term deposits, guaranteed investment
certificates, mutual fund money market holdings, and, in some cases stocks and bonds. It is
important to note that, as with all other assets, these investments are recorded at their original
cost to the organization. Subsequent gains are not recorded in the accounts. The notes to the
statements often disclose market value of the investments. You should read the notes to see if
the market value disclosed is greater than or less than the cost amount of the investments
recorded in the statements.

If, in the eyes of the organization, an investment has suffered a permanent impairment in value

- (i.e., has declined in value helow the original cost and the value is not expected to recover)

then the securities will be w:ien down in the financial statements to the now lower market

value. Subsequent increases i:: market value will not be recognized in the statements,

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are amounts owing to the organization at a specific date for services
rendered and goods sold. Examples of accounts receivable are amounts owed by parents for
child care fees and workshep fees earned by an organization but not received until after the
year end. Accounts receivable may also include other items due to the organization such as GST
refunds, interest receivable on investments and grants receivable from government
organizations for services rendered by the organization prior to the reporting date.

An important question to ask regarding accounts receivable is: "Will the amounts receivable
actually be received by the organization?" An implicit assumption in financial statements is that
the amounts included in accounts receivable will be recovered by the organization. Amounts on
the organization’s books that are not expected to be recovered are often either fully written off
or are offset by an allowance for uncollectible debts.

Inventory

Inventory comprises goods and supplies (assets) held by the organization for resale. An implicit
assumption in financial statements is that inventory can be sold at an amount at least equal to
its cost to the organization. A question to ask regarding inventory is: “Is it saleable in the
foreseeable future?" If the answer is no, then the inventory should not be included as an asset
in the financial statements.



Capital assets

Capital assets are assets held for a period longer than one year and comprise items such as
land, buildings, furniture and other equipment. Capital assets are held for use by the
organization in delivery of its services and are not intended for sale in the ordinary course of
operations. The financial statements reflect capital assets at their original purchase price. The
statements do not attempt to disclose fair market value or disposable value or any type of value
other than cost. Consequently, while capital assets may be listed at Rs.20,000, that is not to say
that they could be sold for Rs.20,000 or-that it would cost Rs.20,000 to replace them. The
information disclosed is that the assets originally cost the organization Rs.20,000.

Accumulated amortization

Financial statements disclose not only the cost of capital assets but also an item called
accumulated amortization. Assets are usually recorded as an expense over @ number of years
(e.g. three years or five years). This is the accountant’s way of trying to spread the cost of an
asset over its useful life. Accumulated amortization is the accounting term that explains how
much of the assets have been recorded as an expense since their purchase. The excess of
original cost over accumulated amortization of capital assets is termed "net book value". The
net book value of capital assets represents the remaining value of assets to be written off as an
expense in future years.

Note that lan is not amortized as the usefulness of land generally does not diminic* with time
in the sare v-uy that, for example, a computer does.

Analysis of assets
When reading a balance sheet we recommend that you focus on the following:

* collectability of accounts receivable (i.e. will amount recorded actually be
received);

e the difference between the market value of securities/investments and their
recorded cost;

 if inventory on hand is saleable in the foreseeable future;

*  whether all significant capital assets of the organization are recorded on the
balance sheet '

* whether the organization plans to or needs to replace capital assets in the
future .

Liabilities

Like assets, liabilities are divided into current and long-term categories. Current liabilities are
those which are owed and due to be paid within one business cycle, usually a year, such as
accounts payable and accrued liabilities and deferred grant revenue. All other liabilities to be
paid over a period longer than a year are classified as long-term liabilities.
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Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities are obligations that have been incurred by the
organization before the year end but have not yet been paid. The following are examples of
some of the more common amounts payable:

* unpaid salaries and wages at the year end where the pay date does not fall on
the year end date

* vacation pay earned but not taken by employees as at the year end

* goods and services such as utilities, food and professional fees that have been
purchased and/or consumed by the year end but have not yet been paid for.

Liabilities are generally recorded at the amount that the organization expects to pay to
discharge them. If a potential liability exists but it cannot be valued (e.g., in the case of an °
outstanding item such as a lawsuit whose outcome is in doubt at the year end) then this
situation will often be disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. This is yet another
example of why you should always refer to the notes when looking at a set of financial
statements. :

Deferred grant revenue

Deferred grant revenue represents grants received by an organization before the year end
whare the related expenses have not yet been incurred. As an example consider an organization
thed s eceives a salary grant in advance of the year end for salaries to be incurred the following
ye:r. The unspent portion of the grant at the year end would be recorri=d as deferred grant
revzitue in the liabilities section of the financial statements.

Loans, mortgages and other debt

- This caption represents the amount of debt, such as mortgages and multi-year bank loans,

ows:: by the organization to third parities. Again, reading the notes is very important for
understanding the impact the debt will have on the future cash flows of the organization. The
notes will generally disclose the loan payment terms, interest rates, and, very importantly, the
security pledged by the organization. For example, if an organization pledged its accounts
receivable and inventory as collateral for a bank loan then this will be disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements.

Analysis of liabilities

» Compare current liabilities with current assets. The organization should have
sufficient current assets (the sum of cash, inventory, accounts receivable, etc.)
to cover its current liabilities. If it does not then you should question how the
organization will pay the amounts owing in the upcoming year.

» Review the terms and conditions of loans and other debt to determine whether
any large payments are due in the near future.

* Read the notes to the financial statements to determine whether there are any
potential liabilities that could not be quantified as at the year end.



Net Assets

The next major caption in a balance sheet is that of net assets. This caption often appears as
accumulated surplus (deficit), net worth, or funds. Regardiess of the name, in all cases it
represents the excess of the book value of what an organization owns (assets) less the book
value of what the organization owes (liabilities). : :

Net assets are often subdivided based on the nature of the restrictions placed on the net assets
by an organization’s donors and funders. There are four common subdivisions of net assets:
restricted, designated, invested in capital assets and unrestricted. «

Restricted

This caption reflects assets given to the organization on which the funder or donor has placed
explicit restrictions. The organization has a duty to use these funds in accordance with the
specified purposes or the funds could have to be returned to the contributor. An example would
be where donations have been given specifically to fund the purchase of a building. The
organization must use the money to buy a building; it could not turn around and spend the
money to cover operating or other non-building expenses.

Designated amounts

Designated amounts usually represent amounts the organization has set aside to fulfill a specific
function. Designated amounts come to the organization without restrictions on their use but are
subsequently designated for a specified use by the Board of Directors. A common example
would be vhere an organization notionally or physically sets aside an amount tc purchase a
new asset such as a building or to repair or renovate an existing asset such as a playground.
Designated amounts could also be set aside for possible costs in the event of wind up of an
organization or to provide a cushion in the event of unexpected financial requirements.

It is important to note that, unlike funds with externally imposed restrictions, the requirements
to spend designated amounts can be changed by the organization without the funds having to
be returned to anyone.

Invested in capital assets

This amount represents the net book value of capital assets in the financial statements less the
value of liabilities related to those assets. For example, if an organization had a building with a
net book value of Rs.1,000,000 against which there was a Rs.250,000 mortgage then the
amount reflected as “invested in capital assets" would be Rs.750,000.

Unrestricted funds

What is left over after restricted, designated and funds invested in capital assets are so called
"unrestricted" funds. These are funds that can be used for the general operating purposes of
the organization. Note that even though use of the funds is classified as unrestricted they must
stil be used in accordance with the legal mandate of the organization as set out in its
incorporating statutes or similar documents.
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The amount of unrestricted funds provides an indication of the solvency of an organization;
solvency being the ability of an organization both to fulfil its current obligations and fund its
future operations for the foreseeable future. For many not-for-profit organizations the
combination of the unrestricted and designated net asset items should typically be within the
range of one to three months of operating expenses. This is only a very general guideline.
There are circumstances that would warrant a level of unrestricted and designated net assets
outside of that range. Circumstances include extreme financial uncertainty (which could justify a
level of net assets in excess of the range) or, on the other hand, excellent financial stability
(which could justify a smaller than average level of net assets).

Analysis of net assets

« Compare restricted net assets with the level of current assets less current
liabilities. Does the organization appear to have sufficient resources to cover
these specified spending requirements?

* Review the total of unrestricted and designated surplus amounts. Compare this
total with total operating expenses. If the combined surplus is less than a
month's worth of operating expenses or more than three months' worth of
operating expenses then you might question whether the surplus is
appropriate.

Revenues

Revenues represent the earnings of an organization during the reporting period. For example,
an organization entitled to receive Rs.1,000 in a yvear for providing services to its community
would report the Rs.1,000 as revenue. It is impuctant to note that the revenue would be
recorded whether or not the organization actuaily received the cash. Note that any revenue
earned by not received at the reporting date wouid be included in accounts receivable under
current assets in the balance sheet.

Donation revenue -

Donation revenue usually comprises donations acually received in the year. Donors do not
enter into a contract with the organization when making a donation. The revenue is, therefore,
generally only recognized in the reporting period ir which the donatiohs are actually received.

Pledges to donate that have not yet been honoured by the donor at the year end are generally
not set up in the financial statements. Because the pledge agreement is not a legally
enforceable contract the organization has no legal way to enforce collection. You should read
the notes to the financial statements to see if the organization has a policy of recognizing as
revenue donations pledged but not yet received at the year end. :

Grant revenue

Grants, unlike donations, are generally characterized by a legally binding contract between the
funder and the organization. Grant revenue comprises funds earned by virtue of the
organization carrying out programs specified by the funder in a grant contract. Revenue earned
does not necessarily equal cash received from funders during the year. For example, an
organization receiving Rs.10,00,000 in cash before the year end for a program that was only
three quarters over by the year end would typically record grant revenue of Rs.7,50,000 in the
statement of operations. The remaining Rs.2,50,000 would be reflected as deferred grant
revenue under the liabilities section of the statement of financial position. Consequently, grant
revenue, unlike donation tevenue, reflects grants "earned” by an organization and not just cash
received. ‘
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Analysis of revenues

» Review changes in revenue from last year to this year. Management should be
able to explain significant changes if the reasons for those changes are not
evident from the financial statements themselves.

* Review accounts receivable in conjunction with revenue. A significant increase
in accounts receivable might indicate either problems with collectability of
revenue or a significant increase in activity toward the end of the fiscal year.

Expenses

Expenses during the year represent costs incurred by the organization to carry out its services.
Again, as with revenue, it is important to note that expenses will include amounts for services
provided or goods received that have not yet been paid for by the organization at the reporting
date. Note that unpaid expenses will be reflected as part of accounts payable and accrued
liabilities in the statement of financial position.

Salartes and wages

Salaries and wages are typically the single biggest expenditure item for most not-for-profit
service-based organizations. Personnel related expenses should include the amount of any pay
equity obligation for the year whether or not the organization has actually paid staff their pay
equity entitlement. Organizations should also include the expense of unpaid vacation pay over
the period if this is a significant item.

Analysis of expenses

» Compare the change in expenses from last year to this year. Review the notes
to see if explanations for significant differences are noted.

* Review the notes to the financial statements to determine whether there are
potential expenses that have not been recorded because the amounts were not
reasonably determinable at the year end.

Statement of Cash Flows

This brings us to a review of the statement of cash flows. This statement is a very important
one for organizations with a significant amount of deferred revenue, long-term debt and capital
assets. The statement of cash flows categorizes and summarizes the actual cash receipts and
cash disbursements for the year. Unlike the statement of operations, this statement excludes
the effect of amounts receivable and amounts payable by the organization at the year end. The

statement discloses, among other items, cash spent for purchase of capital assets together with
‘cash spent to retire debt.

Cash transactions occurring in the year are typically divided into two captions:

Cash from operations

This caption includes cash received and cash spent during the year on an organization’s
operations. For example, if an organization receives a Rs.10,00,000 grant before year end but
only spends Rs.7,50,000 of it by the year end then the statement of cash flows will reflect the
full Rs.1,000,000 grant receivable under the Capticn cash received from operations. Cash used
for operations will show the Rs.7,50,000 in cash spent. '

[
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Financing and investing

This caption includes cash received from and cash paid out for investments in the year such as
marketable securities, equipment and land and buildings. These items would not appear in the
statement of operations as they result from an exchange of one asset for another (i.e. cash for
an investment) and are, therefore, not expenses. The statement also includes cash received
from or paid to reduce debt. For example, if an organization paid Rs.2,50,000 to purchase a

building, then the full amount of the Rs.2,50,000 would appear in the statement of cash flows
as a building purchase.

Analysis of statement of cash flows

* Take net cash actually received or spent on operations from the statement of
cash flows and compare it with the surplus or deficit for the year as recorded in
the statement of operations. The two amounts should be similar unless
liabilities or receivables have changed significantly over the year. If the two
amounts do not closely correlate then ask why. Understanding a discrepancy is
especially important when an organization with a healthy excess of revenue
over expenses has received significantly less cash from operations. The

discrepancy might indicate cash flow problems that could lead to financial
difficulties.
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Interpretation of Financial statements

Introduction

Financial statements on their own are of limited use. For example: if you were
to identify that a business has made profits of Rs.10 million what does that tell
you about the business? Does it suggest the business is a success? It might,
but not if in the previous year they made profits of. Rs.50 million and their
closest rival earned profits of Rs.60 million.

s important that users of financial statements can interpret the financial

statements to be able to draw out valid conclusions. Typically this involves the
use of comparisons to prior years, forecasts and competitors. Users can
compare sales and expense figures, asset and liability balances and cash
flows to perform this analysis.

Ratio analysis is widely used to support this process of comparison. Don't
forget though that ratios are calculated using the figures already present in the
financial statements. The raw data is equally useful when performing analysis.
Ratios are simply a tool to try and assist understanding and comparison:

Users of financial statements

When interpreting financial statements it is important to ascertain who are
the users of accounts and what information they need:

« shareholders and potential investors — primarily concerned with
receiving an adequate return on their investment, but also with the
_ stability/liquidity of the business
+ suppliers and lenders — concerned with the sécurity of their debt or
loan
+ management — concerned with the trend and level of profits, since this
is the main measure of their success.

Other potential users include:

» financial institutions

« - employees

» professional advisors to investors

» financial journalists and commentators.

" Ratio analysis

Ratios use simple calculations based upon the interactions in sets of data. For
example; changes in costs of sale are directly linked to changes in sales
activity. Changes in sales activity also have an effect upon wages and



salaries, receivables, inventory levels etc. Ratios allow us to see -those
interactions in a simple, concise format.

Ratios are of limited use on their own, thus, the following points should serve
as a useful checklist if you need to analyse data and comment on it:

» What does the ratio literally mean?

» What does a change in the ratio mean?
»  What s the norm? .

» What are the limitations of the ratio?

Focus of analysis

Traditionally financial statements analysis focuses on four key areas:

-« profitability,
o liquidity,
»  efficiency, and
« financial position.

When you are using financial statements as a management tool, you will need
to learn how to interpret them. The same accounting data is used to prepare the
three key reports of the financial statement, the cash flow statement, balance
sheet, and income statement, but each takes a company’s pulse in a different
area.

12 Things You Need To Know About Financial Statements

Knowing how to work with the numbers in a company's financial statements is
an essential skill for users. The meaningful interpretation and analysis
. of balance sheets, income statements and cash flow statements to discern a
company's investment qualities is the basis for smart investment choices.
However, the diversity of financial reporting requires that we first become
familiar with certain general financial statement characteristics before focusing
on individual corporate financials. In this article, we'll show you what the
financial statements have to offer and how to use them to your advantage.

1. Financial Statements Are Scorecards

There are millions of individual investors worldwide, and while a large
percentage of these investors have chosen mutual funds as the vehicle of
choice for their investing activities, many others are also investing directly in
stocks. Prudent investing practices dictate that we seek out quality companies
with strong balance sheets, solid earnings and positive cash flows.

Whether you're a do-it-yourself or rely on gudance from an investment
* professional, learning certain fundamental financial statement analysis skills
can be very useful. Almost 30 years ago, businessman Robert Follet wrote a
book entitled "How To Keep Score In Business" (1987). His principal point
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. was that in business you keep score with dollars, and the scorecard is a

financial statement. He recognized that "a lot of people don't understand
keeping score in business. They get mixed up about profits, assets, cash flow
and return on investment.”

The same thing could be said today about a large portion of the investing
public, especially when it comes to identifying investment values in financial
statements. But don't let this intimidate you, it can be done. As Michael C.
Thomsett says in "Mastering Fundamental Analysis" (1998):

"That there is no secret is the biggest secret of Wall Streetand of any
specialized industry. Very little in the financial world is so complex that you
cannot grasp it. The fundamentals, as their name implies, are basic and
relatively uncomplicated. The only factor complicating financial information is
jargon, overly complex statistical analysis and complex formulas that don't
convey information any better than straight talk."

2. What Financial Statements to Use

For investment analysis purposes, the financial statements that are used are
the balance sheet, theincome statement, the cash flow statement,
the shareholders' equity and retained earnings. A word of caution: there are
those in the general investing public who tend to focus on just the income
statement and the balance sheet, thereby relegating cash flow considerations
to somewhat of a secondary status. That's a mistake; for now, simply make a
permanent mental note that the cash flow statement contains critically
important analytical data.

3. Knowing What's Behind the Numbers

The numbers in a company's financials reflect real world events. These

~numbers and the financial ratios/indicators that are derived from them for

investment analysis are easier to understand if you can visualize the
underlying realities of this essentially quantitative information. For example,
before you start crunching numbers, have an understanding of what the
company does, its products and/or services, and the industry in which it
operates.

4. The Diversity of Financial Reporting

Don't expect financial statements to fit into a single mold. Many articles and
bocks on financial statement analysis take a one-size-fits-all approach. The
less-experienced investor is going to get lost when he or she encounters a
presentation of accounts that falls outside the mainstream or so-called
"typical" company. Simply remember that the diverse nature of business
activities results in a diversity of financial statement presentations. This is
particularly true of the balance sheet; the income and cash flow statements

- are less susceptible to this phenomenon.



5. The Challenge of Understanding Financial Jargon

The lack of any appreciable standardization of financial reporting terminology
complicates the understanding of many financial statement account entries.
This circumstance can be confusing for the beginning investor. There's little
hope that things will change on this issue in the foreseeable future, but a good
financial dictionary can help considerably.

6. Accounting Is an Art, Not a Science

The presentation of a company's financial position, as portrayed in its financial
statements, is influenced by management estimates and judgments. In the
best of circumstances, management is scrupulously honest and candid, while
the outside auditors are demanding, strict and uncompromising. Whatever the
case, the imprecision that can be inherently found in the accounting process
means that the prudent investor should take an ‘inquiring and skeptical
approach toward financial statement analysis.

7. Two Key Accounting Conventions

Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) or International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) are used to prepare financial statements. Both
methods are legal in the United States, although GAAP is most commonly
used. The main difference between the two is that GAAP is more "rule
based,” while IFRS is "principle based." Both have different ways of reporting
asset values, depreciation, inventory and more.

8. Non-Financial Statement Information

Information on the state of the economy, industry and competitive
considerations, market forces, technological change, and the quality of
management and the workforce are not directly reflected in a company's
financial statements. Investors need to recognize that financial statement

" insights are but one piece, albeit an important one, of the larger investment
information puzzle.

9. Financial Ratios and Indicators

The absolute numbers in financial statements are of little value for investment
analysis, which must transform these numbers into meaningful relationships
to judge a company's financial performance and condition. The resulting ratios
and indicators must be viewed over extended periods to reflect trends. Here
again, beware of the one-sizefits-all  syndrome. Evaluative

financial metrics can differ significantly by industry, company size and stage of
development.



Sl

—

. r—

r r

10 Notes to the Financial Statements

It is difficult for financial statement numbers to provide the disclosure required

" by regulatory authorities. Professional analysts universally agree that a

thorough understanding of the notes to financial statements is essential in
order to properly evaluate a company's financial condition and performance.
As noted by auditors on financial statements "the accompanying notes are an
integral part of these financial statements." Take these noted comments

seriously.
11. The Annual Report/10-K

Prudent investors should only consider investing in companies with audited
financial statements, which are a requirement for all publicly-traded
companies. Perhaps even before digging into a company's financials, an
investor should look at the company's annual report and the 10-K. Much of the
annual report is based on the 10-K, but contains less information and is
presented in a marketable document intended for an audience of

_ shareholders. The 10-K is reported directly to the SEC and tends to contains

more details.

Included in the annual report is the auditor's report, which gives an auditor's
opinion on how the accounting principles have been-applied. A “clean opinion"
provides you with a green light to proceed. Qualifying remarks may be benign
or serious: in the case of the latter, you may not want to proceed.

12 Consolidated Financial Statements

Generally, the word "consolidated” appears in the title of a financial statement,
as in a consolidated balance sheet. Consolidation of a parent company and its
majority-owned (more that 50% ownership or "effective
control") subsidiaries means that the combined activities of separate legal
entities are expressed as one economic unit. The presumption is that a
consolidation as one entity is more meaningful than separate statements for

- different entities.

XXXX
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Financial Ratios

Top 5 Financial Ratios
The most cost commonly and top five ratios used in the financial field include:
1. Debt-to-Equity Ratio

The debt-to-equity ratio, is a quantification of a firm’s financial leverage estimated by dividing the

total liabilities by stockholders’ equity. This ratio indicates the proportion of equity and debt used by
the company to finance its assets.

The formula used to compute this ratio is

Total Liabilities / Shareholders Equity
2. Current Ratio
The current ratio is a liquidity ratio which estimates the ability of a company to pay back short-term

obligations. This ratio is also known as cash asset ratio, cash ratio, and liquidity ratio. A higher

current ratio indicates the higher capability of a company 1o pay back its debts. The formula used for
computing current ratio is: :

Current Assets / Current Liabilities
3. Quick Ratio

The quick ratio, also referred as the “acid test ratio” or the “quick assets ratio”, this ratio is a gauge

of the short term liquidity of a firm. The quick ratio is helpful in measuring a company’s short term
debts with its most liquid assets.

The formula used for computing quick ratio is:

(Current Assets — Inventories)/ Current Liabilities
Ahigher quick ratio indicates the better position of a company.

4. Return on Equity (ROE)

The return on equity is the amount of net income returned as a percentage of shareholders equity.
Moreover, the return on equity estimates the profitability of a corporation by revealing the amount
of profit generated by a company with the money invested by the shareholders. Also, the return on
equity ratio is expressed as a percentage and is computed as:

Net Income/Shareholder's Equity
The return on equity ratio is also referred as “return on net worth” (RONW).

5. Net Profit Margin

The net profit margin is a number which indicates the efficiency of a company at its cost control. A
higher net profit margin shows more efficiency of the company at converting its revenue into actual
profit. This ratio is a good way of making comparisons between companies in the same industry, for
such companies are often subject to similar business conditions.

The formula for computing the Net Profit Margin is:

Net Profit / Net Sales

O



Ratios and Formulas in Customer Financial Analysis

Financial statement analysis is a judgmental process. One of the primary objectives is
identification of major changes in trends, and relationships and the investigation of the
reasons underlying those changes. The judgment process can be improved by experience
and the use of analytical tools. Probably the most widely used financial analysis technique is
ratio analysis, the analysis of relationships between two or more line items on the financial
statement. Financial ratios are usually expressed in percentage or times. Generally, financial
ratios are calculated for.the purpose of evaluating aspects of a company's operations and
fall into the following categories:

 liquidity ratios measure a firm's ability to meet its current obligations.

o profitability ratios measure management's ability to control expenses and to earn a
return on the resources committed to the business.

» leverage ratios measure the degree of protection of suppliers of long-term funds and
can also aid in judging a firm's ability to raise additional debt and its capacity to pay
its liabilities on time.

» efficiency, activity or turnover ratios provide information about management's ability
to control expenses and to earn a return on the resources committed to the
business.

A ratio can be computed from any pair of numbers. Given the large quantity of variables
included in financial statements, a very long list of meaningful ratios can be derived. A
standard list of ratios or standard computation of them does not exist. The following ratio
presentation includes ratios that are most often used when evaluating the credit worthiness
of a customer. Ratio analysis becomes a very personal or company driven procedure.
Analysts are drawn to and use the ones they are comfortable with and understand.

Liquidity Ratios
Working Capital

Working capital compares current assets to current liabilities, and serves as the liquid
reserve available to satisfy contingencies and uncertainties. A high working capital balance is
mandated if the entity is unable to borrow on short notice. The ratio indicates the short-
term solvency of a business and in determining if a firm can pay its current liabilities when
due.

Formula
Current Assets - Current Liabilities



-

r— r—

M r

r— I T r— r— r—

—

—

r—

Acid Test or Quick Ratio

A measurement of the liquidity position of the business. The quick ratio compares the cash
plus cash equivalents and accounts receivable to the current liabilities. The primary
difference between the current ratio and the quick ratio is the quick ratio does not include
inventory and prepaid expenses in the calculation. Consequently, a business's quick ratio
will be lower than its current ratio. It is a stringent test of liquidity.

Formula
Cash + Marketable Securities + Accounts Recejvable
Current Liabilities

Current Ratio

Provides an indication of the liquidity of the business by comparing the amount of current
assets to current liabilities. A business's current assets generally consist of cash, marketable
securities, accounts receivable, and inventories. Current liabilities include accounts payable,
current maturities of long-term debt, accrued income taxes, and other accrued expenses
that are due within one year. In general, businesses prefer to have at least one dollar of
current assets for every dollar of current liabilities. However, the normal current ratio
fluctuates from industry to industry. A current ratio significantly higher than the industry
average could indicate the existence of redundant assets. Conversely, a current ratio
significantly lower than the industry average could indicate a lack of liquidity.

Formula
Current Assets
Current Liabilities

Cash Ratio

Indicates a conservative view of liquidity such as when a company has pledged its
receivables and its inventory, or the analyst suspects severe liquidity problems with
inventory and receivables.

Formula
Cash Equivalents + Marketable Securities
Current Liabilities

Profitability Ratios

Net Profit Margin (Return on Sales)
A measure of net income dollars generated by each dollar of sales.

Formula
Net Income *
Net Sales

* Refinements to the net income figure can make it more accurate than this rziio
computation. They could include removal of equity earnings from investments, "other



income" and "other expense" items as well as minority share of earnings and nonrecuring
items.

Return on Assets
Measures the company's ability to utilize its assets to create profits.

Formula
Net Income *
(Beginning + Ending Total Assets) / 2

Operating Income Margin
A measure of the operating income generated by each dollar of sales.

Formula
Operating Income
Net Sales

Return on Investment
Measures the income earned on the invested capital.

Formula
Net income *
Long-term Liabilities + Equity

Return on Equity
Measures the income earned on the shareholder's investment in the business.

Formula
Net Income *
Equity

Du Pont Return on Assets
A combination of financial ratios in a series to evaluate investment return. The benefit of
the method is that it provides an understanding of how the company generates its return.

Formula
Net Income * N Sales N Assets
Sales Assets = Equity

Gross Profit Margin

Indicates the relationship between net sales revenue and the cost of goods sold. This ratio
should be compared with industry data as it may indicate insufficient volume and excessive
purchasing or labor costs. '

Formula
Gross Profit
Net Sales
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Financial Leverage Ratio

Total Debts to Assets
Provides information about the company's ability to absorb asset reductions arising from
losses without jeopardizing the interest of creditors.

Formula
Total Liabilities
Total Assets

Capitalization Ratio
Indicates long-term debt usage.

Formula
Long-Term Debt
Long-Term Debt + Owners' Equity

Debt to Equity
Indicates how well creditors are protected in case of the company's insolvency.

Formula
Total Debt
Total Equity

Interest Coverage Ratio (Times Interest Earned)
Indicates a company's capacity to meet interest payments. Uses EBIT (Earnings Before
Interest and Taxes)

Formula
EBIT

Interest Expense

Long-term Debt to Net Working Capital
Provides insight into the ability to pay long term debt from current assets after paying
current liabilities.

Formula

Long-term Debt
Current Assets - Current Liabilities

Efficiency Ratios

Cash Turnover
Measures how effective a company is utilizing its cash.

Formula
Net Sales

Cash



Sales to Working Capital (Net Working Capital Turnover)
Indicates the turnover in working capital per year. A low ratio indicates inefficiency, while a
high level implies that the company's working capital is working too hard.

Formula
Net Sales
Average Working Capital

Total Asset Turnover
Measures the activity of the assets and the ability of the business to generate sales through
the use of the assets.

Formula
Net Sales
Average Total Assets

Fixed Asset Turnover
Measures the capacity utilization and the quality of fixed assets.

Formula
Net Sales
Net Fixed Assets

Days'’ Sales in Receivables

Indicates the average time in days, that receivables are outstanding (DSO). It helps
determine if a change in receivables is due to a change in sales, or to another factor such as
a change in selling terms. An analyst might compare the days' sales in receivables with the
company's credit terms as an indication of how efficiently the company manages its
receivables.

Formula
Gross Receivables
Annual Net Sales / 365

Accounts Receivable Turnover
Indicates the liquidity of the company's receivables.

Formula
Net Sales
Average Gross Receivables

Accounts Receivable Turnover in Days
Indicates the liquidity of the company's receivables in days.

Formula
Average Gross Receivables
Annual Net Sales / 365
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Days' Sales in Inventory
Indicates the length of time that it will take to use up the inventory through sales.

Formula
Ending Inventory

Cost of Goods Sold / 365

Inventory Turnover
Indicates the liquidity of the inventory.

Formula
Cost of Goods Sold
Average Inventory

Inventory Turnover in Days
Indicates the liquidity of the inventory in days.

Formula
Average inventory
Cost of Goods Sold / 365

Operating Cycle

Indicates the time between the acquisition of inventory and the realization of cash from
sales of inventory. For most companies the operating cycle is less than one year, but in

some industries it is longer.

Formula
Accounts Receivable Turnover in Days
+ Inventory Turnover in Day

Days' Payables Outstanding
Indicates how the firm handles obligations of its suppliers.

Formula
Ending Accounts Payable
Purchases / 365

Payables Turnover
Indicates the liquidity of the firm's payables.

Formula
Purchases
Average Accounts Payable

Payables Turnover in Days
Indicates the liquidity of the firm's payables in days.

Formula
Average Accounts Payable
Purchases / 365




Additional Ratios

Altman Z-Score

The Z-score model is a quantitative model developed in 1968 by Edward Altman to predict
bankruptcy (financial distress) of a business, using a blend of the traditional financial ratios
and a statistical method known as multiple discriminant analysis.

The Z-score is known to be about 90% accurate in forecasting business failure one year into
the future and about 80% accurate in forecasting it two years into the future.

Formula
Z=1.2  x(Working Capital / Total Assets)
+1.4  x {Retained Earnings / Total Assets)
+0.6  x (Market Value of Equity / Book Value of Debt)
+0.999 x (Sales / Total Assets)
+3.3  x (EBIT / Total Assets)

Z-score Probability of Failure
less than 1.8 Very High
greater than 1.81 but less than 2.99 Not Sure
greater than 3.0 Unlikely

Bad-Debt to Accounts Receivable Ratio
Bad-debt to Accounts Receivable ratio measures expected uncollectibility on credit sales. An
increase in bad debts is a negative sign, since it indicates greater realization risk in accounts

receivable and possible future write-offs.

Formula
Bad Debts

Accounts Receivable

Bad-Debt to Sales Ratio
Bad-debt ratios measure expected uncollectibility on credit sales. An increase in bad debts is
a negative sign, since it indicates greater realization risk in accounts receivable and possible

future write-offs.

Formula
Bad Debts

Sales

Book Value per Common Share

Book value per common share is the net assets available to common stockholders divided
by the shares outstanding, where net assets represent stockholders' equity less preferred
stock. Book value per share telis what each share is worth per the books based on historical

cost.
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Formula

{Total Stockholders' Equity - Liquidation Value of Preferred Stocks - Preferred Dividends in Arrears)
Common Shares Outstanding

Common Size Analysis
In vertical analysis of financial statements, an item is used as a base value and all other
accounts in the financial statement are compared to this base value.

On the balance sheet, total assets equal 100% and each asset is stated as a percentage of
total assets. Similarly, total liabilities and stockholder's equity are assigned 100%, with a
given liability or equity account stated as a percentage of total liabilities and stockholder's

equity.

On the income statement, 100% is assigned to net sales, with ail revenue and expense
accounts then related to it.

Cost of Credit

The cost of credit is the cost of not taking credit terms extended for a business transaction.
Credit terms usually express the amount of the cash discount, the date of its expiration, and
the due date. A typical credit termis 2 / 10, net / 30. if payment is made within 10 days, a 2
percent cash discount is allowed: otherwise, the entire amount is due in 30 days. The cost of
not taking the cash discount can be substantial.

Formula
% Discount 360
100 - % Discount X Credit Period - Discount Period

Example

On a $1,000 invoice with terms of 2 /10 net 30, the customer can either pay at the end of
the 10 day discount period or wait for the full 30 days and pay the full amount. By waiting
the full 30 days, the customer effectively borrows the discounted amount for 20 days.

$1,000 x {1 -.02) = $980

This gives the amount paid in interest as:
$1,000 - 980 = $20

This information can be used to compute the credit cost of borrowing this money.

% Discount « 360
100 - % Discount Credit Period - Discount Period
= 2 360 _
98 X 20 - .3673

As this example illustrates, the annual percentage cost of offering a 2/10, net/30 trade
discount is 2imest 37%. :



Current-Liability Ratios
Current-liability ratios indicate the degree to which current debt payments will be required

within the year. Understanding a company's liability is critical, since if it is unable to meet
current debt, a liquidity crisis looms. The following ratios are compared to industry norms.

Formulas
Current to Non-current =  Current Liabilities
Non-current Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Current to Total = = oo
Rule of 72

A rule of thumb method used to calculate the number of years it takes to double an
investment.

72
Formula —_—
Rate of Return
Example

Paul bought securities yielding an annual return of 9.25%. This investment will double in less
than eight years because,

72 =17.78
575~ years

mHPHB®
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lllustrations of Calculations under Various Financial

Appraisal Techniques

Calculations for Payback Period, Rate of Return, Debt Services
Coverage Ration, Break Even Point, Net Present Value, Benefit Cost Ratio,

Internal Rate of Return are illustrated as per following details.

1. Cost of project
2. Projected profitability
3. Pay back period
4. Rate of Return (ROR)
5. Debt Service Coverage Ratio (PSCR)
6. Break Even Point (BEP at 80% 7>U)
7. Net Present Value (NPV)
& Benefif Cost Ratio (BCR)
8. Internal Rate of Return (IRR)
9. Compounding Factor

10. Discounting Factor

Annexure - |
Annexure — ||
Annexure - |ll
Annexure - |V
Annexure -V
Annexure - Vi

Annexure-VIi

Annexure- Vil
Annexure - IX

Annexure - X
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ABC Garment Manufacturing Unit

ANNEXURE-|

COST OF PROJECT
(RS. IN LAKHS)
SL. NO DETAILS AMOUNT

1. |LAND & LAND DEVELOPMENT 4.86
2. |cIvIL WORKS 79.50
3. |PLANT & MACHINERY 191.02
4. |MISCELLANEOUS FIXED ASSETS 12.85}
5. |PROVISION FOR CONTINGENCY 14,17
6. |PRE-OPERATIVE EXPENSES 11.61
7. |MARGIN MONEY FOR WORKING CAPITAL 35.99
TOTAL 350.00

LOAN FROM NCDC 50.00% 175.00

$/C FROM S/GOVT. TO SOCIETY 40.00% 140.06

SIC FROM SOCIETY 10.00% 35.00
SUBSIDY FROM NCDC 0.00% 0.00
TOTAL 100.00% 350.00




ANNEXURE-ii

ABC Garment Manufacturing Unit
PROJECTED PROFITABILITY AND CASH FLOW STATEMENT ( Rs=in Lakhs)
SL.NO.|PARTICULARS ! n ] v v v vl vt
1__| CAPACITY UTILISATION 70% 80% 80% 80% 80% 80% 80% 80%
2 | PRODUCTION {LAKH PIECES.) 254 3.30 330 330 3.30 3.30 330 3.30
3._| WORKING DAYS 300 300 300 300 300 30 300 300
COST OF PRODUCTION
4. |RAWMATERIAL 22790 29330 203.30{  293.30] 20330  203.30] 29330 20339
5. _|STORES,SPARES &REPRS. 6.92 8.90 8.90 8.90 8.50 8.90 8.90 3.90
6. |UTILITIES 647 8.32 8.32 8.32 8.32 832 832 832
7 7._|PACKING MATERIAL 16.78 21.60 2160 21.60 2160] 2160|2160 21.60
" 8._|WAGES ‘ 188.70] _ 198.14] 20804 21845]  220.37]  240.84] _ 252.88] 26582
79, [SALARIES 2337 24.54 2576 21.05 2640 29.82 3132 3288
~10._|OVERHEAD & SELG. EXP. 13.45 1731 73173 1731 731 73[R
" 11. |INSURANCE 797 10.00 10,00 10.00 10,00 10.00 1000, 10.00
12, |INTEREST ON WKG. CAPL, 10.91 14.04 14.04] ___14.08 14.04] 1404 1404 4.0
13. |TOTAL COST OF PRODN. s02.25]  596.14 607.28) 61897  631.24] 64443 65766
14. *|[SALES REALISATION 60833 73080 73080]  730.80]  730.80|  730.80| 73080
15.|INT. ON TERM LOAN 231 2231 1942|1594 1275 9.56 637
15. |DEPRICIATION 28.06 28.06 28.06] 2806 2006 2806 28.06
17._|pBITD 106.14] _134.66 123.52] 11183 99.56| 8667|7344
" 18._|PROFIT BEFORE TAX 55.76 84.28 7634  67.84 5875 4sus|  3s70
| 19, [TAX(30%+3%SURCHARGE) 17.23 26.04 2359] 2008 - 1815|1513 14.96
20, |PROFIT AFTER TAX 38.53 58.24 5275 as87 a0.59] 33 2674
_21._|CASH ACCRULAS 66.59 86.30 8081 7494 68.66| 61,35 54.80
< 22 |FUNDS AVAILABLE FOR D.5 8891  108.61 9994  90.87 $1.41 7% 61.18
23, |DEBT SERVICE 2231 - 4731 aa12| 4034 3775|3438 31.37
24. [DSCR 3.8 2.30 226 222 2.6 207 1.95
25 [AVGD.SCH 228
2. IR _ 18.90%
27, |BEpu 53.33 L




NON - DISCOUNTED TECHNIQUES

Annexure -ill

Pay Back Period
Rs. in lakh
Years Out flows Inflows Cumm.Inflows
0 -350.00 0 0
1 88.91 88.91
2 108.61 = 197.52
3 09.94 297 .46
4 90.87 388.33
5 81.41 469.74
6 71.52 541.25
7 61.18 602.43
8 50.38 652.81

Payback Period
Years 2

Months 1
Days 20




Annexure -IV

ROR (Rate Of Return)
Rs. In Lakhs
Total Outlay  350.00
Total Inflows 652.81
No. Of Years 8
Average Inflow 81.60
ROR (%) (Average Inflow/Total Outlay)*100

(67.66/350.00)*100 - 23.31%|




r 1

f';“

Annexure -V
DSCR
Rs. In lakh

Years 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

Cash Accruals 88.91 108.61 99.94 90.87 81.41 71.52 61.18 50.38 652.81
Repayment (P+l) 22.31 47.31 44.12 40.94 37.75 34.56 31.37 28.19 286.56
DSCR 3.98 230 226 222 216 207 195 1.79
ADSCR 2.28

r—-— rr— r— 11— -
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Annexure -VI

BEP at 80% CU
Rs. In lakh
A. |REVENUE 730.80
B. |COST OF PRODUCTION
1. RAW MATERIAL 293.30
2. PACKING MATERIAL 21.60
3. STORES & SPARES 3.90
4. UTILITIES 8.32
5. SELLING EXPENSES & WAGES 215.35
6. INTEREST ON WORKING CAPITAL 14.04
TOTAL OF (B) 556.51
C. |CONTRIBUTION (A-B) 174.29
D. |FIXED EXPENSES
1. INSURANCE 10.00
2. SALARIES 25.76
3. FAC. & ADMN. OVERHEAD 10.00
4. INTEREST ON TERM LOAN 19.12
5. DEPRICIATION 28.06
TOTAL OF (D) 92.95
BREAK-EVEN POINT AS in CU% (D/C) 53.33%
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DISCOUNTED TECHNIQUES
Annexure -Vl

NPV & BCR

Rs. In lakh Rs. In lakh
Years 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Present Value of Outlay  350.00
Inflows 0 88.91 108.61 99.94 90.87 81.41 71.52 61.18 50.38
DF at 15% 0.87 - 0.756 0.658 0.572 0.497 0.432 0.376 0.327
Dizcounted Inflows 77.35 8211 65.76 51.98 40.46 30.89 23.00 16.47
Total Discounted Inflows 388.03
NPY (TDI-PVO) 38.03
BCR (TDI/PVO) 1.1




Annexure -VIi

IRR :
(Rs. In 000)
Years Outflows Inflows DF Dl DF DI
15% 15% 16% 16%
0 100.00 0.00
1 30.00 087 26.10 0.86 25.86
2 30.00 076 22.68 0.74 22.29
3 40.00 066 26.40 0.64 25.64
4 4500 057 2565 0.55 2484
100.83 - 98.63
Absolute Difference
Minimum 0.83
Maximum 1.37
Total 2.20
Ratio of Minimum to total 0.38

IRR

15.38%
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. Table A.1 (Contd) . R : ’
. :Period. R - ont : : o - S K
w7 14% 15% Y16% . 17% 18% 19%  20% 24% - - - 28% 32% 40%
0 " 1.000 1.000 -1.000 1,000 1.000 1. ooo,: ~'1.000 1,000 . 1.000 1.000 . 1.000
1 - 1,140 1.150 1,160 ° - 1.170 1.180 ‘1.190: - 12007 "1.240 1.280 1.320 " 14007
2 1.300 1322 - H 3467 1.369 1.392 1416 1.440 1,538 1.638° 1.742 . 19601}
3 1.482 1.52k 1.602 1.643 1.685 1.728 1.907 2097 ° 2.300 2.744
4 1689 T749 T 1874 H..owo 2.005 - X 074 2364 2 owA 3.036 © 3.842
5 1.925 2.011  ° 2100 - 2,192 2.288 2.386 2488 - 2397 ‘3436 - 4.007 5.378
6 2.195 2.313 - 2436 " 2.565 2,700  2.840 2.986 3, 635 .. 4. 398 m.noo 75301
7. . 2502 - 2.660 .N..mN..m.. .... 3.001 3385 .3. wvw ' 3.583 P.mom mwo 6983 10:541
8 2.853 3.059 "3.278  3.511- 3.759 owﬂ . 4.300. 5.590 7206 - 9217 -14.758 }
9 3282 3518 ° 3803 4108 4435 4785 5160~ 6931 ~ 9223 = 12166 20661
10 3.707 4.046 4411 4.807 5234 5695 6192 8.549 11.806 * . "16.060 . 28925
11 . 4.226 4.652 5117 - 5.624 6176 6777 7430 . 10.657 15.112 +21.199 + 40.496
12 4.818 5.350 5.936 6.580: 7:288 . '8.064 8916 13215 . 19343 ..Nu.wm.w 56.694
13 5.492 6.153 6.886 V.mw.w, 8.599 . 9596 10.699 16: 386 . 24. 759 36,937 79.372
14 6.261 7076 7.988 9.007 10147 11.420..-12.839 20:319 3¥961.: 48.757 111,120
15 7.138 - -B.I37 . 9266 10.539 - 11974 13590 - 15.407 . 25.196 .ko.mmm - . 64.359 155.568
16 W8S 137 9.358 ° 10.748 MN.mwO 14129 16172 .18.488- 31.243 51,923 84.954 217.795|
17 . m 276 .10.761 ° 12.468 14426 16 dQN 19:244 22,186 38.741 mm 461 H.nM‘.wmw 304.914
18 10.575 12375 u..&wbm.w. 16.879° 19.673 N.N 901 Mm.mnu . 48.039 mm 071 148.023 426.879
19 - 12.056 14.263 HQM.SQ. '19.748. 23214 wﬂ.nmw '31.948 " 59,568 - 108: 890 - ﬂwm.wmﬁ N /mmﬂ.mmo
20 ©7+13.743 16.367 19461 23.106 . 27:393 32 bnm wm 338 . 73. 264 139:380 Nmﬂ.wﬂmn 836.683 !
: 25 © 26462 32,919 20.874 50.658 62.669 -~ 77.388' " 95.396 216. 542 - 478.905 1033.590 % Nwmo omw 4499.880
‘30 50950 66212 85.850 111065 143371 184.675 237.376 634820 1645504, 4142.075 1043019 24201432
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. - .Tablé A.3 (Conta) ;
. Period K o . , - - .
n 14% 15% 16% . 17% 18% 19% 20% 24% - 28%  32% 36% 40%
0 '1.000 1.000 1000 1.000 - 1.000 . 1.000. 1000 1000 1.000  1.000 1.000  1.000.
"1 0877 = 0870 0862 - 0.855 0.847 .. 0840 . 0833 - 0806 0781 0758 0735 . 0.714
2 0.769 0756 0743 0931 * 0718 " 0.706 0694 '0:650 . . Q610 " 0574 0541 -0.510
3 0675 0658 ' 0.641 - 0.624  0.609 0593 0579 0524 0477 0435 0398 .0.364.
4 0592 . 0572  0.552 0.534.. 0516~ 0499 0482 0423 0373 0329 0292 © 0.260
5 0519 0497 0476 0456 0437 0419 0402 . 0341 . 0291 0250 0215 0.186
6 70456, 0432 0410 0390 .. 0.370 0352 033 0275 0227 0189  0.158 0.133.
. 7 .-0400 0376 '~ 0.35¢ - 0.333 0314 - 029 - 0279 0222 - 0178 . 0.143 - 0116  0.095
8 10351 0327 0305 . 0285 - 0266 - .0249 “~0.233 ° 0179 L0139 . 0108 ° 0085  0.068.
N ) 0.308 0284 0263 0243 " 0326 .0.209 -0.194 - 0144 0168 0082  0.083 - 0.048:
10-. 0270 0247 . 0227 0.208- ' 0191 -* 0.176. . 0.162" 0116 0085  0.062 . 0046 . 0035
11 " 0237 0215 0195 . 0178 . 9.162". ° 0148 0135 0094 0066~ -~0.047 0034 00251
12 0208 0187 0168 0.152 - -0.137 0124 01127 0076 0052 0.036  0.025 0.618
13 0182 ° 0163 01245 0.130 0116 0104 0093 - 0061  0.040° 0027 0018 - 0.013°
“ 14 0160 * 0141 * 0125 0111 0.099 - (088" 0078 0049 0032 " 0021 - 0014 0.Q0s"
m . 15 0140 0123 0108 ~ 0.095 0.084 . 0074 - 0065 0040 0035  0.016 ~.0.010  0.006.
16 0123 .. 0107 * 0093 ‘0081 0071 - 0062 - 0054 . 0032 . 0.019 - .0.012 ‘0007  0.005-
17 0.108  0.093  0.080 -0.069 - 0.060 . 0052 0,45 0026, 0015 0,09 0.005" . '0.003:
18 0.095 0081 0069 0059 0051 L0044 0038 0021 0012 0007 0.002, 0.902'|.
: 19 ;0083 0070 ° 0.060. - 0.051 0.043 0037 0031 - 0017 0003 0005 - 0.003 *\ 0.002 !
; 20 "0.073-- 0061 0051 - 0043 0037 0031 0026 0014 0007 --0.004 - 0,002- *0.001°
25 0038 0030 0024 6020 0016 0013 0.010. 0005 0002 0001 -'9.000 0.000..
30, 0020 0015 0012 .- 0009 . 0.007 0005 0004 0002 0001 . 0000 0000  0.000




Time Value of Money

Future Value of Money
FVatter n years) = PV(1+r)"
PVatter n years) = FV*[1/(1 +r)"] or
PViatter n years) = FV*(1+r)™
FV=Future Value

PV=Present Value

r=Rate of interest

n=Number of years

Example:

Find out Future Value of Rs.1000/- after 3
years at 12% rate of interest p.a.

FV=1000(1+.12)°
=1000(1.12*1.12%1.12)
=1000+*1.405

= Rs.1405/-



If frequency of compounding is more than 1.
FVatter n years) = PV(1+r/m)™™"

m= Frequency of compounding e.g. m=2
=1000(1+.12/2)%3

=1000(1.06)°
=1000(1.06*1.06*1.06*1.06*1.06*1.06)
=1000*1.418

=1418/-

Effective Rate of Interest(ER) and Stated
Rate of Interest (SR)

Compounding - semi-annual
ER=[(1+SR/m)™]-1
=[(1+.12/2)?]1

- =[(1+.06)%]1

=(1.06*1.06)-1

=1.1236-1

=0.1236 i.e12.36%



—
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Compounding - Quarterly
ER=[(1+SR/m)™]-1
=[(1+.12/4)*11
=[(1+.03)*]-1
=(1.03*1.03*1.03*1.03)-1
=1.1255-1

=0.1255 i.e12.55%

Frequency SR |m |Formula ER(%)
(%)

Annual 12 |1 =[(1+.12/1)"']-1 12.00
Semi- 12 (2 =[(1+.12/2)?*]-1 12.36
annual

Quartely (12 |4 =[(1+.12/4)*]-1 12.55
Monthly 12 |12 |=[(1+.12/12)"?]1 12.68
Weekly 12 |52 |=[(1+.12/52)%%]1 12.73
Daily 12 |365|=[(1+.12/365)*°11  |12.75




